ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD 9 5,00 q
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATIORECE'VED

This Section must be completed for all projects. FEB 14 2025
Facility/Project Identification w
Facility Name: TARGET Health Cooperative Partnership Medical Clinics Building
Street Address: 5525 South Pulaski Road
City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60629
| County: Cook Health Service Area: VI Health Planning Area: A-03

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)] )
Exact Legal Name: The Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois, .
a state body corporate and politic of the State of lilinois

Street Address: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright St.
City and Zip Code: Urbana, IL 61801
Name of Registered Agent: Dedra M. Williams, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

Registered Agent Street Address: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Urbana, IL 61801

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Timothy Killeen, President, University of lllinois
CEOQ Street Address: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street
CEQ City and Zip Code: Urbana, IL 61801

| CEO Telephone_!\_l_umber: 217/333-3070 )

Type of Ownership of Applicants "
O Non-profit Corporation [l Partnership :
O] For-profit Corporation X Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ]

Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name

and address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

i*APPEND nocumsmmon As ATTACHMENT 1IN NUMERIC seousunm. ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE o)
|“APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President '
Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc. 1
Address: 348 Chicory Lane Buffalo Grove, IL 60089

Telephone Number:  847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com ]
Fax Number: '




Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for
exemption] er oy ——

Name: _ none
Title: i
Company Name:.

Address:

Telephone Number:
E-mail Add_ress:
Fax Number:




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

[ Name: Sandi McCuliough, RN, MBA

Title: Senior Director, Clinical Operations

Company Name: Ul Health at 55t & Pulaski Heaith Collaborative

Address: 840 South Wood, Suite 113 CSB M/C 510 Chicago, IL 60612

Telephone Number:  312/492-0028

E-mait Address: sm99@uic.edu

Fax Number: i

Site Ownership

Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact L.egal Name of Site Owner: The Board of Trustees of the University of lilinois, a state body
corporate and politic of the State of Iflinois

Address of Site Owner: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street Urbana

61801

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 5525 South Pulaski Road Chicago, IL 60629

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of

ownership are property tax statements, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the

corporation attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
i APPLICATION FORM.

Operating IdentityILicensee

Exact Legal Name:  please see ATTACHMENT 3
| Address NOTE: Medical Clinics Bunldmgs are not licensed by I1DPH

| Non-profit Corporation O Partnership

] For-profit Corporation X Governmentat

O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship [
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an HHlinois Certificate of Good

; Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a genera! or limited partner.

o Persons with 5§ percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the %
of ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTA‘T!ON AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
L APPL.ICATION FORM. i

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person |
| or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is parficipating in |
the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

fi nanc;at contrlbutlon

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. _ 24 ; |

W



Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-
5 pertaining toconstruction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of
the flood plain requirements, please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any
identified floodplain  areas. Floodplain maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or
www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable format. In addition, please provide a
statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of lilinois Executive Order #2006-5

(http:/fwww.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTAGCHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b}]

Part 1110 Classification:

C Substantive

X Non-substantive




2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
| State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street

address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's

classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The proposed project is a cooperative effort between Ul Health Physicians Group
(“UIPG"), Alivio Medical Center (“Alivio”), Friend Family Health Center (“Friend"), and Mile Square
Health Center (“Mile Square”), with the project being led by UIPG.

The applicant is The Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois, a state body corporate
and politic of the State of lllinois, with the proposed outpatient facility to be operated by TARGET
Health Cooperative (“TARGET”). The applicant has acquired a building at the intersection of
West 55" Street and South Pulaski Road, intending to operate the building as a medical clinics
building (“MCB"). The building formerly housed outpatient services operate by Mercy Hospital &
Medical Center, which were discontinued in 2021.

This is the second CON application to be filed addressing this project. A CON Permit for
the project was approved in March, 2022, and the associated Permit was withdrawn in January
2025. The original project was designed to be completed in phases. This second Certificate of
Need ("CON") Permit is being sought because the additional costs to be incurred exceed the 7%
allowable increase in the original Permit.

Programmatically, a number of services not included in the initial project are being added,
including surgical oncology and sports medicine clinics and a telemedicine program. The
telemedicine program is designed to address space capacity issues, and is intended to also
provide services to the patients of a number of rurai FQHCs.

The MCB became operational in February 2022 with the initiating of selected specialty
clinic services, with additional services becoming operational throughout 2022, 2023 and 2024.
During the 12-month period ending January 17, 2025 nearly 38,000 patient visits were provided.

Funding for the project is being provided through two grants from the lliinois Department
of Healthcare and Family Services (‘DHFS") to the TARGET Health Cooperative (“Transforming
the Gage Park/West Elston Community Through Partnership”), which, as noted above, is led by
Ul Health and includes as partners Alivio Medical Center, Friend Family Health Center, and Ul
Health's Mile Square Health Center, each of which is a FQHC operating in the area. The initial
grant was for $17,272,028 and the second grant is for $6,544,000 to address the project’s capital
costs.

Ul Health Physician Group will provide specialty services. In addition, the UIC College of
Applied Health Sciences will provide physical and occupational therapy services and nutrition
services, and the UIC Office of Community Engagement and Neighborhood Health Partnerships
will address social determinants of health.

The Ul Health specialty services and the care coordination services were initiated in
February 2022, immediate care services were initiated in July of 2022, behavioral health services
in September 2022, radiology services in April 2023, rehabilitation services in September 2023,
and limited dental services were initiated in September 2025.

This is a non-substantive project as a result of all patient services being provided on an
outpatient basis.

5



PROJECT COST AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Reviewable Non-Reviewable Total

'roject Cost:
replanning Costs $ 101,500 $ 43,500 $ 145,000
iite Survey and Soil Investigation
jite Preparation $ 297,500 % 127,500 $ 425,000
)ff Site Work
lew Construction Contracts
fodernization Contracts $ 5,686,740 | % 2,375,665 3 8,062,405
;ontingencies $ 380,780 | $ 213,220 $ 584,000
\rchitectural/Engineering Fees $ 455 064 | $ 194,166 $ 649,230
sonsulting and Qther Fees 3 427,000 ' § 183,000 3 610,000
Aovable and Other Equipment {not in construction centracts) $ 7249310 ' $ 1,279,290 $ 8,528,600
let Interest Expense During Construction Period
-air Market Value of Leased Space
‘air Market Value of Leased Equipment
Sther Costs to be Capitalized $ 5,802,720 % 2,486,880 $ 8,289,600
\cquisition of Building or Other Property 3 4820888 % 2,066,095 $ 6,886,983

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ 25,221,502 §$ 8,969,316 $ 34,190,818
sources of Funds:
>ash and Securities $ 7,262,353 ' § 3,112,437 $ 10,374,790
’ledges
3ifts and Bequests
3ond Issues (project retated)
Jortgages
.eases (fair market value)
sovernmental Appropriations
Srants $ 16,671,220 % 7,144 808 $ 23,816,028
Jther Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 23,933,573 § 10,257,246 $ 34,190,818




GRANTS AWARDED TO FUND PROJECT

The primary funding of the project is in the form of two grants awarded by the Illinois Department
of Healthcare & Family Services (“DHFS™). The first grant, in the amount of $15,000,000
(subsequently increased to $17,272,028, was the primary funding source for the project approved
by the HFSRB in March 2022, The second grant, also from DHFS, was approved in December
2024, and is the amount of $6,544,000. The primary capital costs to be addressed through the
second grant, and the initial cost estimates for those project components include:

parking lot improvements $348,000

door actuators for toilets $145,000
dental clinic expansion $514,000
1st floor Bas controls $131,000
rooftop AHU replacement  $2,316,000
duct return system $157,000
roof replacement $716,000
purchase of parking lot $500,000
telehealth system $950,000
EMR systemn $500,000
misc./other $267.000
$6,544,000



Dear Dr. Prendergast:

The Hlinois Department of Healthcare & Family Services (HFS) is pleased to inform you that after further
review, we have decided to fund your proposal and would like to discuss next steps.

Preliminarily, HFS approves your funding request of $14.2 million for the first year. The total funding
request approved is for up to $15 million over three years. The continuation of this funding will be based
upon your meeting key performance measures, milestones and other terms and conditions of the
funding agreement. In the meantime, if you wish to do publicity about this preliminary award, please
coordinate with evan.d.fazio@illinois.gov.

We invite you to participate in a WebEx meeting (details below). This discussion may encompass
possible adjustments to components of your proposal, including modifications of funding levels.

You will also have an opportunity to ask any questions that you may have about the process and next
steps. Please be prepared to discuss your proposed implementation strategy and timeline and any needs
that you may have associated therewith.

Please ensure that representatives who can thoroughly address all elements of your proposal will be
participating, as well as representatives from each of your collaborating partners.

As requested during our previous meeting, please send the names, titles, company names, email
addresses and phone numbers of those who will be attending, including any collaborating partners,
within 48 hours before the meeting. This will be a closed meeting consisting of the HFS negotiation team
and the applicant only. Final award decisions will be made after these upcoming discussions.

We appreciate your commitment to improving the health and wellness in the communities you serve
and ook forward to further discussions.

Target Health HTC Award Meeting

https://hes32-
ctp.trendmicro.com:443/wis/clicktime/v1/query?url=https%3a%2f%2fillinois.webex.com%2fillinois%2fj.
php%3fMTID%3dm0f476e1e40da48356d7edac1f8bcc7428&umid=d79ab3ea-eb1f-4a35-aaff-
acifefica231&auth=cb8e2e5f0380db52462dcdd50199f593f72alcle-
bcad393808844055ca0375b3e8¢9d1b499¢591e5

Wednesday, Jul 21, 2021 11:30 am | 1 hour | (UTC-05:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

Meeting number: 177 787 1288

Password: 43EzyMWKXWS8

Rimberdy E. MWePutlough - Starks

Kimberly E. McCullough-Starks

Deputy Director

illincis Department of Healthcare & Family Services
401 South Clinton, 7" Floor

Chicago, lliincis 60607

Office: 312-793-4792

Cell: 312-639-0353

Fax: 312-793-0268

Email Address: kim.mccullough@illingis.qav
Website Address: https:/fwww.illinois.gov/hfs




{HFS

We !mprove Lives
Iinoes Depariment of Healthcare and Famuly Services

“If you talk to a man in a language he understands, that goes o his head. If you talk to him in his
language, that goes to his heart.”
---Nelson Mandela

* Ge! the help
l"lﬂOlS you need.

Folfinillinots

rons: arited

aganst COMID- 18

join the
pledge here. Follgw us for real-time



@ QOutlook

55th & Pulaski: approved for funding

From Lava, Jesse W <Jesse.Lava@Illinois.gov>
Date Mon 12/2/2024 4.18 PM
To  McCutlough, Sandi <sm99@uic.edu>; hprender <hprender@uic.edu>

Cc  Parker, James <jpark406@uillincis.edu>; Ford-Davenport, Tanya L. <Tanya.Ford-Davenport@Illinois.gov>;
Seliger, Matthew <Matthew.Seliger@illinois.gov>; Diewald, Susan <diewald2@uillinois.edu>; hap111
<hap111@comcast.net>; Winick, Ben <Ben.Winick@lllinois.gov>

*WARNING** This email originated from outside of the University of Hlinois. **DO NOT CLICK** finks
or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

sandi and Heather — HFS is granting 55th & Pulaski (aka Target) an extension of its funding agreement for two
years to run through calendar year 2026. You are approved for $6,544,000 during that period. This amount covers
your most recent proposal of $8,807,005, excluding the telehealth system, purchase of a parking lot, and building
dlinical director. We will be in touch shortly with an amendment to the funding agreement; | wanted to get you
the news when | had it. Please be sure to notify your board, HTC members, legal support, fiscal agent, and any

other relevant parties. — Jesse

Jesse Lava

He, him

Special Assistant to the Director
Phone: +1 B47-347-0650
lessalava@iliinoie. gov

&GOR  HFS

‘bﬁ .;s' llinois Department of
B-A'*d Healthcare and Family Services

000

We improve lives.

State of linois - CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this communication is confidential, may
be attorney-client privileged or attorney work product, may constitute inside information or internal deliberative staff
communication, and is intended only for the use of the addressee. Unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this
communication or any part thereof is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this communication
in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and destroy this communication and ali copies thereof,
including all attachments. Receipt by an unintended recipient does not waive attarney-client privilege, attorney work

product privilege, or any other exemption from disclosure.



Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicabie, with respect to any land related to the project that will
be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project  INCLUDED IN PURCHASE PRICE OF BUILDING

Purchase Price:  $__50,000 {(purchase of parking lot)
Fair Market Value: $__50,000
The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
] Yes X No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the
target utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ N/A

Project Status and Completion Schedules
For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers. R

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[C] None or not applicable [ Preliminary

X Schematics [ Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): ___December 31, 2026

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer

to Part 1130.140):
PLEASE SEE NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION

[[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been
executed.

[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment’ document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

[] Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APBLICATIONFORM. R S N e T

L.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry
X APORS
X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted
X All reports regarding outstanding permits

Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
permit being deemed incomplete.

//



Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified.

The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs.
include outside wall measurements plus the departments or

being realiocated for a different purpose.

area's portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Indicate if any space is

Not Reviewable Space [i.2., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff, or employees of a heaith care

facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care

facilily

"Non-clinical service areas” include, but are not limited fo, chapels; gift shops, newss

tands; compuler systems; tunnels,

walkways, and elevators; telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities; student housing; patient,
employee, staff, and visitor dining areas; administration and volunteer offices; madernizalion of structural components (such as roof
replacernent and masonry work), boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities, mechanical
systems for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacement of carpeting, tile, wall coverings, window

coverings or treatments, or furniture.  Solely for the purpose of this definition, "nan-clinical service area

fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3]

" does not include health and

Gross Square Feet

That Is:

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

New

Cost Const.

Dept. / Area Existing | Proposed

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnaostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

| TOTAL

| -

. I S

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

| APPLICATION FORM.
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the
project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which data is available. include observation days in the patient day totals
for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the application being

deemed incomplete.

[ University of lllinois
FACILITY NAME. Hospital & Clinics CITY: Chicago
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: to:
Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed

Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 240 10,061 70,763 none 240
Obstetrics 36 2,101 4,839 none 36
Pediatrics 20 388 2,800 none 20
Intensive Care 65 2,603 18,811 none 65
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation )
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 47 584 12,363 none 47
Neonatal Intensive Care 30 548 4,844 none 30
General Long-Term Care )
Specialized Long-Term Care e e
Long Term Acute Care
QOther ((identify)
TOTALS: 438 16,285 114,420 none 438




CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist},

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist),

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of _The Board of Trustees of the University

of lllinois, a state body corporate and politic of the State of Hlinois__*

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

Qoanra Dhodon

SIGNATURE
Paul N. Eliinger
Joanna Groden
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Vigce Chancellor for Research Comptrotier
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
af4i2s Kt fb A zj'.r'lr'b;ﬂ
Comptrolier Delegate Date

*Insert the EXACT legal name of the applicant

Kristen Scheurich
Assistant Director, Proposals
Office of Sponsored Programs




Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

1.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

Document that the project will provide health services that improve the heaith care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition.

Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

Cite the sources of the documentation.

Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and weli-being.

Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board-Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED iN ATTACHMENT 12,

ALTERNATIVES

1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A} Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.

8] Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion
of the population propesed to be served by the project; and

D} Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits
in both the short-term {within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This
may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL
PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST
BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

| 1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
f excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space

and the methodology applied.

2. if the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

i a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility's Medical Director.

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

i d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not
in existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14. !

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL QRDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
l APPLICATION FORM. :

[PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lli. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be

provided.

! A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

' [ UTILIZATION

‘ |_ |' DEPT/ | HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET |
, SERVICE = UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?

(PATIENT DAYS}) ‘

- | | (TREATMENTS) | |

I | | | ETC. | |
| YEAR 1 ' 1

I [ YEAR2 | i ]

1 = =

! APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.

/5



UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
not applicable...no shell space included in project

Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;

and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of
future utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be

placed into operation.

-APPEND DOCUMENTATION ASATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
i APPLICATION FORM.

ASSURANCES:

not applicable...no shell space included in project

Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HF SRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
sheli space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service

involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

£

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT. 17, N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

/L



for the criteria:

M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:
2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms
U
general radiology 1 1 B
U
CcT 1 1
L
ultrasound 1 | 1 |
L] [ ]
mammography 1 1 .4
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation

Project Type

Required Review Criteria

New Services or Facility or Equipment

{b) - Need Determination - Establishment 1

Service Modernization

(€)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities

AND/OR

-l_{cHZ} - Necessary Expansion
PLUS

| (C)3)(A) - Utilization —'Major Medical Equipment

OR

(c)(3)(B) - Utilization — Service or Facility

TAPPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF

THE APPLICATION FORM.
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The foilowing Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

= Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
« Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection {(a)

Vil. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the doltar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts;

d) Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period,
and the anticipated repayment scheduie) for any interim and for the
permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the
required referendum or evidence that the governmentat unit
has the authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the
doilar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting
to the expectation of making the ioan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms
and conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment;




5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including al
terms and conditions.

accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the
governmental unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a

e) Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance i
copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent; |

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in
terms of the amount and time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any
other funds that will be used for the project.

I TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF !
THE APPLICATION FORM. : S
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SECTION Vill. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shail be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A” Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to
be insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond ietter of credit from an
A rated guarantor.

Proof of “A” bond rating provided

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. Ifthe health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years Wi

Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utifized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another

organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
not applicable

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total
with cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated prbject costs and related costs will be funded in total
or in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the
balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at
least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments,
and the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash
or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing
not applicable

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant
shall document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the
following, as applicable:

1) That the seiected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost avaiiable,

2} That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment
privileges, no required mortgage, access o additional indebtedness, term
{years), financing costs and other factors;

3 That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or
facilities and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are
less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. |dentify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost |
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the |

following format (insert after this page}.




COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B © D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot | Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ | Mod. § Cost
New Mod. | New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (B x E) (G +H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage {%) of space for circulation

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no
more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs

| of salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

D. Projected Operating Costs

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per

equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two

| years following project completion.

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NU

| APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL
SUBSTANTIVE PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS
3960/5.4]:

not applicable

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community,
the impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible
for an applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety |
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providersina |
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified
by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to :
Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in @ manner
consistent with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding
“Inpatients and Qutpatients Served by Payor Source” and "inpatient and Qutpatient Net Revenue by
Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual

' Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly reievant to safety net services, including
information regarding teaching, research, and any other service,

4



A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient .
Outpatient L
Total i
Charity {cost in dollars)
[npatient ~
Qutpatient I
Total [
MEDICAID '
Medicaid (# of patients) Year | Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue) | 1
Inpatient [ _[
| Qutpatient |
| Total .

.-'.'

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS AT‘I‘ACﬂMENI 3g, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTML ORDER AFTERTHE LAST PAGE ok THE .
APPLICATION FORM : : A

S |
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

NOT APPLICABLE, APPLICANT IS NOT A LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)}.

|1.

E

All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three |
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient |

revenue.

If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each
individual facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis,
the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity
care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement, the allocation of charity
care costs: and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by
payer source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient |
revenue by the end of its second year of operation. |

| Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not
| expect to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care

must be provided at cost.

‘ A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

[ CHARITY CARE ’ '

Net Patient Revenue

| Amount of Charity Care (charges)
. Cost of Charity Care ) I

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . ; .
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN
DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EQ 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board
(HFSRB) must determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EQ 5, is located in a
mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required
to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is planned or promoted, the proposed project
meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with the National Flood insurance
Program (NFIP)} and state floodplain regulation.

I. Applicant: _The Board of Trustees of the University of lliincis a state body corporate and politic of the

State of ilincis 364 Henry Administration Buiiding (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street
{Address)
{City)Urbana {State) L (ZIP Code) 61801 (Telephone Number) 217/333-3070
2. Project Location: 5525 South Pulaski Road
Chiicago, 18 {AGdress (City)
Cook
{County) {Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA
Map Service Center website (https.//msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the
property in the Search bar. If a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go To
NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a copy of the floodplain map by selecting the
icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon v

site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial
photo. You will then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and
use the Make a FIRMette tool to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA:
Yes No X
IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact
the county or the local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

and place a pin on your

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) - _ {State) - (ZIP C.o;_ (Telephone Number]_
Signature: Date:

NOTE. This finding only means that the property in guestion is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area
or a 500-year floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that
the property will or will not be flooded or be subject to local drainage problems

if you need additional help, contact the Ilfinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428

o g



STATUS OF APPLICANT

By law, the applicant is exempt from having to obtain a Certificate of Good Standing.

ATTACHMENT 1
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Chicago Title and Trust Company

. . 10 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3100
CUHICAGO TITLE & TRUST. Chicago, IL 60603

312-223.2173

Disbursement Statement

Settlement Date: QOctober 18, 2021

Disbursement Date: October 18, 2021

Order Number: CCHI2101969LD

Escrow Officer: Laurel Arlis

Buyer: University of Hlinois

Seller: MERCY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER, AN [LLINOIS NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION

Property: 5525 South Pulaski Road
Chicago, IL 60629

Buyer Seller
Debit Credit Pebit Credit

Total Consideration
Purchase Price 4,850,000.00 4,950,000.00

Personal Property and Equipment 35,000.00 35,000.00

Prorations/Adjustments

Proration for 2021 Taxes 9,373.24 9,373.24
Non-Exempt Parcels

Proration for 2021 Taxes 9,162.79 9,162.79
lL.eased Parcel

coration for Parking Lease 1,983.48
Paid through October
Title/Escrow Charges $8,550.00

Owner's Policy and Endorsements 3,850.00
Coverage: $4,950,000.00
Version: ALTA Owner's Policy 2006

Deed and Money Escrow 750.00 750.00
Policy Update Fee 150.00
New York Closing Fee (GAP Coverage) 250.00 250.00
Commitment Update Fee 150.00
Endorsement Package for Billing 1,975.00
Estimated Recording Fees 250.00
E Recording and Service Fees 25.00
Overnight/Express Delivery Service Fee 75.00
Schedule B Document Copies 75.00

1,983.48

Miscellaneous Charges
Chicago Water Certificates (2) Fees to MGR Title 300,00
Services
Real Estate Taxes 19-14-100-068 to MGR Title 1,803.88
Services fho Cook County Treasurer

2al Estate Taxes 19-15-207-030 to MGR Title 1,364.65
Services fbo Cook County Treasurer

ATTACHMENT 2

—F CCHI2101965LD



Disbursement Statement

Buyer Seller
Debit Credit Debit Credit

anigcellaneous Charges (continued)

sal Estate Taxes 19-15-207-031 to MGR Title 1,326.10

Services fbo Cook County Treasurer
Real Estate Taxes 19-15-207-032 to MGR Title 1,364.65

Services fbo Cook County Treasurer
Real Estate Taxes 19-14-100-074 to MGR Title 5,816.85

Services fbo Cook County Treasurer
Duplicate Tax Bill Fee to MGR Title Services fbo 35.00

Cook County Treasurer
RE Tax Payment Fee to MGR Title Services 255.00

$51 per parcel
ALTA/NSPS to Bock and Clark Carporation 3,000.00
Commission to Transwestemn Commercial Services 120,000.00
Commission to Lynch Realty, Inc. 99,000.00
Legal Counsel Fees to Barnes & Thornburg 26,680.07
Subtotals 4,990,458.48 18,536.03 284,557.04| 4,986,983.48
Balance Due FROM Buyer 4,971,922.45
Balance Due TO Seller 4,702,426.44
Totals 4.000,458.48 | 4,990,458.48 4,986,983.48| 4,986,983.48

See signature page to follow ATTACHMENT 2

Printed on 10/18/2021 12:03:58 PM
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BUYER:

The Board of Trustees of the University of lliinais,
a public body corporate and politic of the State of [llinois

Ydd M7

Name: ?&u_f’ :d 5 g’})'nfﬁ—{“
Title: /i?*/&f ) 1y V/: f?% é é_ﬁjﬂzfﬂ’?’c Ve 7, P

Signature Page to Disbursement Statement ATTACHMENT 2
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Chicago Title Insurance Company
File No: NCS CCHI2101969LD

SIGNATURE PAGE TO MASTER STATEMENT

SELLER:
MERCY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER,

an Tllinois not-for-profit cyn
By: % / ¢//é"

Name: Jéffréy R. Mathis
Title: Secretary

ATTACHMENT 2
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Disbursement Siatement

BUYER

“rarsity of lllinois

By:
Name:
Its:

SELLER

MERCY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER, AN ILLINOIS NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Its:

"‘Hicaibie and Trust Company
\
P
BY. nuquA) /,\,L)
Chidado Title amastryst Company

ATTACHMENT 2

CCHI2101968LD

Printed on 10/18/2021 12:03:58 PM
3 o Page 3 of 3



NOTE ON OPERATING ENTITY/LICENSEE

The Board of Trustees of the University of Ilinois owns the University of Illinois Medical
Center at Chicago and several other healthcare providers across the state. These providers,
pursuant to 210 ILCS 85/3(A)2), are not subject to the licensure requirements of the [llinois
Hospital Licensure Act. The Hospital was established under the University of Illinois Hospital

Act (110 ILCS 330).
The Itlinois Department of Public Health does not license medical clinics buildings.

The day-to-day operations of the MCB will be directed by the TARGET Health Cooperative
Partnership, which is led by Ul Physician Group.

ATTACHMENT 3
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Tllinois Health Facilities and
Services review Board
Springfield, Illinois

To Whom It May Concern:

I hereby confirm that the project proposed in this Certificate of Need application, that being the
establishment of a medical clinics building at 5525 South Pulaski Road in Chicago, complies
with the requirements of Executive Order #2006-5. A map confirming such, and provided by

FEMA, is attached.

Sincerely,

-

Scott E. Jones
Chief Ambulatory Operations Officer

Notarized:

ATTACHMENT 5



1/4/22, 11:04 AM FEMA Flood Map Service Center | Search By Address

FEMA Flood Map Service
Center: Search By Address

Navigation Enter an address place or courdinates' @

5525 Soutn DdzESkl Ftoacl Ch cagc} !L 6062 :

Search

Wi*etli"er you are in a hugh ris« 2ane or not, you may nepd _Q_Q_d
insurance (httns.//www. ferna gov/national-flood-insurance-
R=y) guages | program) because most homeowners insurance doesn't cover
. flood damage. If you live in an area with low or moderate flood risk,
. you are 5 times more likely to experience flood than a fire in your
home over the next 30 years. For many, a National Flood

MISG Rume - . Insurance Program’s flood insurance policy could cost less than
Upoital) ] $400 per year. Call your insurance agent today and protect what
i you've built.
MSC Search by | you've bui
Sdg,r.f:ﬂﬂ arch) . - Learn more about steps you can take (hitps//www fermagoviwhat:
" mitigation) to reduce flood risk damage.
. MSC Search All - S RS
Products

(/portal/advanceSearch)

~+ MSC Products
and Tools
{/portal/ resouaeamruﬂu? I

Hazus o

{fpuﬁa'frez.oqrces.r‘hanf ;

LOMC Batch
Files

¥
|
e

{ 'ﬁ%@?

Product
Availability
{mortairproducuwaltab

MSC Frequently

Asked Questions
(FAQs)
(/portal/resources/faq)

e

MSC Email S M AL 03N : '* |
Subscriptions ol by e g 3 T g R
(/portal/subscriptionHome) .
ﬁ.
Contact MSC Help
{/portalfresources/contact) g

R e sl
] .:' 1.3

httns:iimac fama oovioodatisearch?AddressQuery=5525 South Pulaski R .4 sa0ct2C L 80829

12



Axel & Associates, Inc.

MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

January 12, 2022

Iilinois Dept. of Natural Resources
Hlinois State Historic Preservation Office
ATTN: Review and Compliance/Old State Capitol

I Old State Capitol Plaza
Springfield, IL 62701

RE: Proposed Renovation to Medical Office Building
5525 South Pulaski Road
Chicago

To Whom It May Concern:

I am in the process of developing a Certificate of Need application, to be filed with the
Ilinois Health Facilities Services and Review Board, and I am in need of a determination

of applicability from your agency.

The project involves the renovation of approximately 30,000 square feet of the above-
;dentified medical office building (“MOB”). The building is approximately 45 years old.
There do not appear to be any structures of historical significance near the site, the
exterior of the buildings will not be altered in any significant way, and the project will
have no impact on surrounding buildings.

I have enclosed a map of the site and pictures of the hospital and the MOB, as well as
surrounding buildings. The area is generally a mix of retail and office buildings, with
portions of the area currently under development.

A letter from your office, confirming that the Preservation Act is not applicable to this
project would be greatly appreciated.

Should you have any questions, I may be reached at the phone number below.

Sincerely,

./.f,a’/fé’cob M. Axel
#" President

enclosures

ATTACHMENT 6

675 North Court, Suite 210 Phone (847) 776-7101
Palatine, lllinois 60067 e Fax (847) 776-7004



PROJECT COST AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Project Costs
Preplanning Costs

building evaluation 5 115,000
environmental eval. S 10,000
other, misc. S 20,000
$ 145,000
Site Preparations
parking resurfacilng S 349,000
exterior lighting S 18,000
exterior signage S 18,000
other, misc. S 40,000
$ 425,000 S 385,000
Modernization Contracts
please see ATT. 36 S 8,062,405
Contingencies
please see ATT. 36 S 594,000
Architectural & Engineering
phase 2 design S 454,461
phase 1 design S 127,249
ather, misc. 5 67,520
S 649,230
Consulting and Other Fees
project management S 375,000
equipment planning $ 60,000
legal S 60,000
bldg. commissioning S 25,000
printing S 15,000
other, misc. S 75,000
S 610,000

ATTACHMENT 7
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PROJECT COST AND SCGURCES OF FUNDS

Movable Equipment
telehealth
EMR
imaging
specialty clinics
dental clinic
echocardiology
PT/OT
IT
communications syst.
furniture

misc./other

Other Costs to be Capitalized
HVAC replacement
sprinkler system
plumbing system
rooftop repairs/replace.

Acgiusition of Building
Acquisition of Parking Lot

Total

Sources of Funds
Cash from U of | or Related Entity
Grant

Total

S
$
$
$
S
$
$
$
5
5
5

WU W W A

in

1,140,000
600,000
3,260,400
1,288,800
316,100
323,300
150,000
600,000
300,000
350,000

200,000

3,294,000
840,000
517,200

3,638,400

6,386,983

500,000
S 6,886,983

244

S 8,528,600

$ 8,289,600

$ 34,190,818

$ 10,374,790

S 23,816,028

$ 34,190,818
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BACKGROUND

With the signatures provided on the Certification page of this Certificate of Need ("CON”)
application, the applicant attests that, to the best of its knowledge. no adverse action has been taken
against any health care facility owned and/or operated by it, during the three years prior to the
filing of this CON application. Further. with the signatures provided on the Certification page of
this CON application, the applicant authorizes the Health Facilities and Services Review Board
and the Illinois Department of Public Health access to any documents which it finds necessary to
verify any information submitted, including, but not limited to official records of IDPH or other

State agencies, and records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

ATTACHMENT 11
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PURPOSE OF PROJECT

The primary purpose of the proposed project is to improve access to health care services
for a largely financially disadvantaged Latino population residing on the southwest side of
Chicago. Access was significantly compromised with the 2021 closing of a large hospital-operated
outpatient center that occupied the building addressed in this application. As such, the health care

and well-being of the market area population to be served by the project will be improved.

The primary service area (“PSA”) population consists of the residents (children and adults)
residing in the ZIP Code areas located within four miles of the project’s site. There are eleven
residential ZIP Code areas (and one commercial ZIP Code area), with a population of 516,653 in

the PSA, per SearchBug. Those ZIP Code areas are identified below:

60629 Chicago

60499 Bedford Park*

60652 Chicago

60636 Chicago

60632 Chicago

60456 Hometown

60638 Chicago

60459 Burbank

60805 Evergreen Park

60621 Chicago

60620 Chicago

60609 Chicago
*commercial with no population

The disease burden is distressingly high in the service area, compared to state and national
averages. Service area residents are subject to high rates of diabetes prevalence and mortality,
adult and childhood obesity. cancer morbidity and mortality, and adverse pre- and perinatal

indicators. Behavioral health issues such as substance abuse are also significant in the area, and

ATTACHMENT 12



indicators. Behavioral health issues such as substance abuse are also significant in the area, and
access to oral health care is also a challenge. Additionally, the area/neighborhoods surrounding
the project suffer from the low number of primary care providers compared to other parts of

Chicago or the state as a whole.

Historically, though located seven miles to the northeast of the site, and due in part to its
liberal charity care policies and lack of medical care alternatives in the area, UT Health including
Mile Square outpatient center has served as a primary provider of health care services to area

residents.

The goal of the proposed project is to have all clinical services operational by the project

completion date.

ATTACHMENT 12
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ALTERNATIVES

With the understanding that the purpose of the proposed project is to improve accessibility
to high-quality medical care for the residents of a largely lower income and Latino population

residing on the southwest side of Chicago, two alternatives were considered.

The first alternative considered was the construction of a new building in the general
vicinity of the proposed project. Aside from the recognition that the construction cost would
exceed the renovation cost estimated for the proposed project, and because the size of a newly-
constructed building is unknown, the alternative’s capital cost is unknown, but assumed to be
greater than the proposed project’s building purchase and renovation costs. Had this alternative
been selected, the associated operating costs, accessibility for area residents, and quality of care

would be very similar to that of the proposed project.

The second alternative considered would be the locating of the proposed project on or in
very close proximity to the Ul Medical Center campus. This alternative was immediately
dismissed because it would not provide the level of accessibility sought for the target population.
The capital/construction cost associated with this alternative, if a suitable location were identified,
was not sought. Had this alternative been selected, accessibility for the target patient population
would have been significantly diminished, while the operating costs and the quality of care would

be very similar to that of the proposed project.

ATTACHMENT 13
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SIZE OF PROJECT

The proposed project involves space allocated for the provision of four clinical services

having HFSRB-adopted space standards, as documented in Section 11 10, APPENDIX B; and the

amount of space proposed to be assigned to each of those services is consistent with the above-

referenced standards. The project is limited to the renovation of an existing building. and as a

result, the allocation of space is somewhat driven by the building’s existing design. The allocated
space (please see ATTACHMENT 9) is viewed by the applicant as being necessary and not

excessive; and those functions having HFSRB-adopted space standards are identified in the table

below.

PROPQSED
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE DGSF
Gen'l Radiology (1) 870
Mammaography (1) 885
CT (1) 1,300
Ultrasound {1) 183

STATE

STANDARD

1

,300

900

1,800

900

DIFFERENCE STANDARD?

(430)
(15)

(500)
(717)

MET

YES
YES

YES
YES

In addition to the functions having HFSRB-adopted space standards. the facility will have

a total of 26 examination/procedure rooms, located in the following areas:

7

Urgent Care: 5 rooms
Dental Clinic: 4 rooms
Ophthalmology Clinic: 10 rooms
Specialty Clinics: 7 rooms

ATTACHMENT 14



PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

The proposed project does not involve any HFSRB-identified ~Categories of Service”, but
does include four fixed-site imaging modalities (general radiology, CT, ultrasound, and
mammography) having HFSRB-adopted utilization standards, as identified in Section 1110,
APPENDIX B. However. and consistent with HFSRB practices, because only one unit will be

provided for each of the above-identified modalities, the minimal utilization standards are not

applicable.

2024 was the first full year during which the imaging services were being provided. In
order to minimize the effect of the modalities’ “ramp up” period, historical data for the last six
month of 2024 has been extrapolated (July-December utilization X 2} in order to estimate historical
utilization in the table below, and projected utilization has conservatively been projected to

increase by 2% per year through 2027.

Historical Projected STATE MET
Modality & Units  Procedures Procedures STANDARD STANDARD?
Mammography
(1) 1,792 1,901 5,000 N/A
CT (1) 2,596 2,755 7,000 N/A
Ultrasound (1) 2,044 2,169 3,100 N/A
Gen'l Radiol. {1) 2,168 2,301 8,000 N/A

In addition to the services/programs to be provided that have HFSRB-adopted utilization
standards. adult and pediatric physical and occupational services and a variety of outpatient clinics
are provided. During 2024 (extrapolated per above) 1,908 PT/OT patient visits were provided.

with utilization projected to increase to approximately 2.025 patient visits by 2027.

ATTACHMENT 15
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A broad scope of adult and pediatric medical. surgical, OB/Gyn and behavioral health
clinics are also provided at the facility, with many of the clinics operated by the University of
Illinois College of Medicine/UI Physician Group. During 2024 (extrapolated per above) 13,356
patient visits were provided through the specialty clinics, and utilization is projected to increase to

14,173 visits by 2027,

Among the speciaity clinics provided are:

¢ cardiology
colorectal surgery
dermatology
endocrinology
ENT
general surgery
genetics
internal medicine
nephrology
neurology
ophthalmology
orthopedics
pediatric cardiology
pediatric endocrinology
pediatric hematology
pulmonary medicine
rheumatology
women’s health
wound care

» & & & & » & © & & 9 & © 5 & o " »
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CLINICAL SERVICE AREAS
OTHER THAN CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

The project addressed in this Certificate of Need application includes four imaging
modalities that have not been identified by the HFSRB as “categories of service”: general
radiology, CT, ultrasound, and mammography. The physical size and projected utilization for
each of the modalities are addressed in ATTACHMENTS 14 and 15, respectively. As identified
in ATTACHMENT 14, the size of each modality is consistent with the HFSRB standard, and as
noted in ATTACHMENT 15, because each of the modalities is limited to one unit, and consistent

with HFSRB practices, the utilization standards for each modality are not applicable to this project.

The outpatient clinic building is located to the east of Midway Airport in the southwestern
quadrant of Chicago; with it’s purpose being to provide services to a largely-minority patient
population living in the area, having limited access to primary care and specialty services. and
having a higher incidence of numerous health care issues. such as obesity, diabetes, and heart
disease than found in the region, as a whole. The building, until 2021. housed a variety of
outpatient services provided by Mercy Hospital. When the building was abandoned, access to
services in the area was greatly diminished, with the University of Illinois Medical Center
(approximately seven miles to the East of the site) likely becoming one of the most-used sources

of health care for the patient population previously relying on the Mercy center.

Below is a patient origin analysis, identifying the ten ZIP Code areas accounting for the
greatest number of patient visits during the 12-month period ending January 17, 2025; and
confirming that the neighborhoods in the general vicinity of the proposed facility account for a
majority of its patients. A majority of the patients currently utilizing the center are residents of the
Chicago neighborhoods located closes to the center, such as Elsdon. Englewood, West Englewood.

clearing, Archer Heights and Gage Park.

ATTACHMENT 30
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ZIP Code
60629
60632
60609
60623
60620
60608
60638
60652
60617
60619

Location
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
other

% of
Pt. Visits
15.5%
9.7%
5.3%
3.8%
3.6%
3.3%
3.3%
3.2%
3.0%
2.9%
46.4%

Cumulative
%
15.5%
25.2%
30.5%
34.3%
37.9%
41.2%
44.5%
a47.7%
50.7%
53.6%
100.0%

Last, it is not anticipated that the provision of services at the facility has/will have a material

impact on other providers, with the possible exception of the University of [llinois Medical Center.

44
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4 \ UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS SYSTEM

Office of the Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Comptroller

January 19, 2024

Holders of University of Illinois
Health Services Facilities System Revenue Bonds
and The Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois:

[ am pleased to transmit the Annual Financial Report of the University of Illinois Heaith Services
Facilities System for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. This report supplements the Annual
Financial Report of the University of Illinois.

The Health Services Facilities System has emerged from the COVID-19 pandemic with solid
financial results in fiscal year 2023. Patient volume has exceeded pre-pandemic levels,
pandemic-related costs related to personal protective equipment, facility modifications and patient
care have been significantly reduced, and improved revenue cycle functions helped to offset
inflationary impacts and labor costs. Health Services Facilities System leadership, medical
professionals and staff remain committed to its mission of advancing health for everyone through
outstanding clinical care, education, research and social responsibility.

The 2023 financial statements and accompanying notes appearing on pages 5 through 38 have
been audited by RSM US LLP, Independent Certified Public Accountants, as special assistants to
the Auditor Genera!l of the State of [llinois, whose report on the financial statements appears on
pages 2 through 4.

Respectfully,

SIGNED ORIGINAL ON FILE

Paul Ellinger
Vice President. Chief Financial Officer and Comptroller

349 Henry Administration Building + 506 South Wnght Street * Urbana, Tiinois 61801
Office (217) 333-1560 + VYax (217) 244-8108 ATTACHMENT 34
1

53



RSM

RSMUSLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Frank J. Mautino
Auditor General
State of lllinois

and

Board of Trustees
University of lilinois

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial statements of the
business-type activities of the University of illinois Health Services Facilities System (System), a segment
of the University of lllinois, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the System's basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the business-type activities of the System, a segment of the University
of lllincis, as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the University of
lllinois, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the System are intended to present the financial
position, the changes in financial position, and cash flows of only that portion of the business-type
activities of the University of lllinois that is attributable to the transactions of the System. They do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the University of inois as of June 30, 2023,
the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statemnents of the System., in Fiscal Year 2023, the System
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board's Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements. The adoption of this statement resulted in the restatement of opening net
position and the inclusion of intangible right-to-use assets and a subscription liability. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter

ATTACHMENT 34

Sy



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, impiementation, and maintenance of internal control refevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efror.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
caliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
and the Notes to the Required Supplementary Information be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annua! report. The other information

comprises the University Officials page and Transmittal Letter but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover
the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 19,
2024, on our consideration of the System’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the System's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
System’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

SIGNED ORIGINAL ON FILE

Schaumburg, lllinois
January 19, 2024
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources
Current assets:

Claim on cash and on pooled investments $ 410,746,635
Restricted claim on cash and on pooled investments 1,038,992
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 71,216
Accrued investment income 1,333,406
Patient accounts receivable, net 163,943,176
Other receivables, net 12,480,236
inventories 11,253,612
Prepaid expenses, deposits, and other assets 5,107,521
Total current assets 605,974,794

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted claim on cash and on pooled investments 17,533,966
Other receivables 64,630
Capital assets, nondepreciable 25,955,565
Depreciable and amortizable capital assets, net 464,335,789
Total noncurrent assets 507,889,950
Deferred outflow of resources 814,774
Total assets and deferred outflow of resources ) 1,114,679,518

Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, and Net Position
Current tiabilities:

Accounts payable hY 95,888,613
Accrued payroll 28,125,269
Accrued interest payable 1,277,605
Estimated third-party settlements 55,400,942
Current maturities of bonds payable 4,360,000
Current maturities of finance purchases payable 2,124,692
Current maturities of leases and subscriptions payable 6,413,161
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 4,453,599
Total current liabilities 198,043,881
Moncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, net of current matutities 85,416,920
Finance purchases payable, net of current maturities 148,014,413
Leases and subscriptions payable, net of current maturities 12,083,926
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 30,722,284
Derivative instrument — swap liability 84,804
Total noncurrent liabilities 276,322,347
Deferred inflow of resources 345,673
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources 474,711,901
Net investment in capital assets 226,352,916
Restricted:
Expendable for capital projects and equipment 17,210,958
Expendabile for debt service 323,008
Unrestricted 396,080,735
Total net position 639,967,617
Total tiabilities, deferred inflow of resources. and net position $ 1,114,679,518

Ses accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year ended June 30, 2023

Operating revenues:
Net patient service revenue ¥
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
On-behalf for fringe benefits
Special funding situation for fringe benefits
Supplies and general expenses
Administrative services
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

On-behalf for fringe benefits 68,161,825
Special funding situation for fringe benefits 46,666,128
State appropriations 40,549,258
Transfer to the University of lllinois Hospital Services Fund (31,000,000)
Net increase in fair value of investments 1,835,703
[nterest on capital asset related debt (8,278,393)
Investment income (net of related expenses) 7,503,593
Gain on sale/disposal of capital assets 94,184
Other nonoperating revenues, net 2,385,392
Net nonoperating revenues 127,917,690
Increase in net position 74,993,578
Net position, beginning of year 564,190,810
Restatement, change in accounting principle 783,229
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 564,974,039
Net position, end of year $ 639,967,617
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1,141,969,712
79,661,872

1,221,631,584

479,406,956
68,161,825
46,666,128

615,975,800
22,290,113
42,054,874

1,274,555,696

(52,924,112)




UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Patient services 3 1,112,393,939
Payments to suppliers (586,630,442)
Payments for administrative services (22,290,113)
Payments to employees and for benefits (454,628,492)
Other receipts 43,301,341
Net cash provided by operating activities 92,146,233
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities;
State appropriations 9,549,258
Other receipts 1,104,147
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 10,653,405
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets (56,076,706)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 1,495,257
Principal paid on capital debt, leases, and subscriptions (12,705,586)
Interest paid on capital debt, leases, and subscriptions (7,949.311)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (75,236,346)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and other earnings on investments 6,792,720
Pooled cash allocated from University related to unrealized gains 1,835,704
Net cash provided by investing activities 8,028,424
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,191,716
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 393,199,093
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 429,390,809
ATTACHMENT 34
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating loss $ (52,924,112)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 42,054,874
Provision for uncollectible accounts (18,439,557)
On-behalf for fringe benefits 68,161,825
Special funding situation for fringe benefits 46,666,128
Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred inflow of resources:
Patient accounts receivable (4,551,525)
Other receivables (1,246,925)
Inventories (592,351)
Prepaid expenses, deposits, and other assets (1,175,401)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 21,335,359
Advance from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (15,086,086)
Estimated third-party settlements 8,501,395
Accrued compensated absences (421,913)
Deferred inflow of resources - leases portion (135,478)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 92,146,233
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
On-behalf for fringe benefits $ 68,161,825
Special funding situation for fringe benefits 46,666,128
State appropriations 31,000,000
Transfer to the University of llinois Hospital Services Fund (31,000,000)
Other increases in capital assets 1,476,391
Decrease of capital asset obligations in accounts payable (4,157,668)
Capital assets acquired through financed purchase, lease, or subscription 162,683,005
Disposal of capital assets (1,401,073)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2023

The pension schedules above are presented to illustrate the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board’s Statement No. 68 to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the
University will only present available information measured in accordance with the requirements of Statement No.

68.

Changes of benefit terms. There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total Pension Liability as of
June 30, 2022.

Changes of assumptions. In accordance with Zilinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be performed at
least once every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the retirement,
disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients of SURS. An experience
review for the years June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020 was performed in Spring 2021, resulting in the adoption of new
assumptions as of June 30, 2021. These assumptions are listed below and remained the same for the June 30, 2022,
actuarial valuation.

e Salary increase. Change in the overall assumed salary increase rates, ranging from 3.00 percent to 12.75
percent based on years of service, while maintaining the underlying wage inflation rate of 2.25 percent.

e Investment return. Decrease the investment return assumption to 6.50 percent. This reflects decreasing the
assumed real rate of return to 4.25 percent and maintaining the underlying assumed price inflation of 2.25
percent.

e Effective rate of interest. Decrease the long-term assumption for the effective rate of interest for crediting
the money purchase accounts to 6.50 percent.

e Normal retirement rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic
positions to reflect that retirement rates for academic positions are lower than for non-academic positions.

e Early retirement rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic
positions to reflect that retirement rates for academic positions are lower than for non-academic positions.

e Turnover rates. Change rates to produce slightly lower expected turnover for most members, while
maintaining a pattern of decreasing termination rates as years of service increase.

e Mortality rates. Change from the RP-2014 to the Pub-2010 mortality tables to reflect the latter’s higher
applicability to public pensions. Update the projection scale from the MP-2017 to the MP-2020 scale.

e Disability rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic positions
and maintain separate rates for males and females.

s Plan election. Change plan election assumptions to 75 percent Tier 2 and 25 percent Retirement Savings
Plan (RSP) for non-academic members. Change plan election assumptions to 35 percent Tier 2 and 45
percent Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) for academic members.

ATTACHMENT 34
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University of Illinois Board of Trustees
University of Illinois Health Services Facilities
System; Hospital; Joint Criteria; System

Credit Profile

US$66.135 mil hlth svers facs sys rfdg rev bnds (University of lilinois) ser 2023 due 10/ 01/2042

Long Term Rating A-/Pgsitive New
Illinois Finance Authority, Illinois
Provident Group - UIC Surgery Center LLC, Illinois

Hlinois Fin Auth (Provident Grp - UIC Surgery Ctr LLC) sys
Long Term Rating BBB+ /Positive Outlock Revised

University of [llinois Board of Trustees, Illinois
University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System, {llinois
University of lllinois Brd of Trustees (University of [linois Hith Svcs Fac Sys) hosp

Long Term Rating A-/Positive Outlook Revised
University of Illinois Brd of Trustees (University of [llinois Hith Sves Fac Sys) JOINTCRIT
Long Term Rating AA/A-Y Affirmed
Unenhanced Rating A-(SPUR)/ Positive Outlook Revised
Credit Highlights

- S&P Global Ratings revised the outlook to positive from stable and affirmed its ‘'A-' long-term rating on the
University of Illinois Board of Trustees' series 2013 revenue bonds and its underlying rating on the board's series
2008 revenue refunding bonds, issued for the University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System (UIHSFS, or the
system).

« At the same time, S&P Global Ratings assigned its "A-' long-term rating to the board's $66.135 million series 2023
refunding revenue bonds, issued for UTHSFS.

. S&P Giobal Ratings also affirmed its "AA/A-1’ dual rating on the board's series 2008 revenue refunding bonds.

. We base the 'AA/A-1’ rating on the application of our joint criteria. The "AA’ long-term component of the rating is
jointly based on the rating on the obligor, UIHSFS, and the long-term rating on the letter of credit provider, Wells
Fargo Bank N.A. The rating's 'A-1' short-term component reflects solely the short-term rating on Wells Fargo Bank.

« As a result of the outlook revision on UTHSFS, we also revised the outlook to positive from stable on the [llinois
Finance Authority’s series 2020 bonds, issued for Provident Group UiC--Surgery Center LLC (Provident), and
affirmed the 'BBB+’ long-term rating on the bonds.

« The positive outlook reflects UIHSFS's continued solid operating performance amid ongoing industry labor
headwinds, strong maximum annual debt service (MADS) coverage, and balance-sheet metrics that are increasingly
aligned with a higher rating. The outlook also incorporates the successful completion of recent capital expenditure
projects on time and on budget, although UIHSFS is considering additional infrastructure projects over the outlook

period.
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University of Illinois Board of Trustees University of Hlinois Health Services Facilities System; Hospital; foint
Criteria; System

Security
Proceeds from the new issue will be used to refund the system's 2013 series, as well as pay for the cost of issuance.

The bonds, including series 2023, are secured by net system revenue, the University of [llinais College of Medicine's
tuition receipts, and the University of [llinois’ facuity medical service plan. The University of Illincis does not formally

guarantee UIHSFS's debt.

The bonds issued for Provident are secured by a leasehold mortgage as well as lease payments made by the Board of
Trustees of the University of lllinois and UTHSFS for the use of the Specialty Care Building (SCB). Our starting point for
the analysis of the Provident bonds is our rating on UITHSFS. The one-notch differential to 'BBB+' reflects the fact that
the debt is not on par with UTHSFS's senior obligations, and that lease payments are made only once these senior

obligations have been met.

Credit overview
The rating reflects our view of UIHSFS's position as an essential service provider in the competitive Chicagoland area,

along with the benefits of a solid medical staff and the ongoing support received from the University of [liinois and the
state. We view favorably ongoing strategic initiatives to improve quality and operational performance, and successes

so far to upgrade the infrastructure, and expand and strengthen the system.

The rating also reflects UIHSFS's solid operating performance and robust MADS coverage, which we expect will
continue during the outlook period, albeit at a lower level, and that benefits from significant state support for certain
expenses and revenues. As well, the rating incorporates the system'’s solid debt profile, which is expected to improve
over the outlook period, as well as adequate days’ cash on hand (DCOH), which remain thin for the rating. That said,
we understand that although a number of key capital investments are complete, management is evaluating additional
capital spending needs. Finally, the rating incorporates a one-notch positive adjustment to the anchor rating from the

benefit UIHSFS derives from its relationship with the University of [llinois.

Recently, UTHSFS opened its Specialty Care Building (SCB) on time and on budget, which enhanced the system’s
ability to conduct outpatient surgeries, optimized the use of the hospital's existing operating rooms for more complex
surgeries, and improved the overall care setting for its patients. [n addition, UIHSFS completed this year the
remodeling of the hospital's atrium lobby, which it financed with cash. We believe that the completion of these larger
projects, along with the successful systemwide rollout of Epic in late 2020, has improved UIHSFS's infrastructure and
enhanced the system's longer-term competitive position. As mentioned above, over the outlook period, management
expects to undertake additional capital expenditure projects to increase capacity and improve the existing
infrastructure, although the scope and timing of certain projects has yet to be finalized. While we believe some ongoing

spending at higher levels could be managed at the higher rating, maintenance of healthy cash flow will be a key factor.

In 2023, UIHSFS generated robust operating margins, aided by increasing surgical volume spurred by the opening of
the SCB, higher payer rates, and a one-time gain associated with the reversal of bad debt reserves. For fiscal 2024,
management expects operating performance will remain solid, albeit weaker, as higher salaries and benefits along with
inflation pressure margins. We view these expectat ions as reasonable and also note that management has historically

been conservative in its performance expectations.
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University of lllinois Board of Trustees University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System; Hospital; Joint
Criteria; System

The 'A-' rating reflects our opinion of:

» TJIHSFS's status as an essential service provider in the system's primary service area (PSA), and an improving
position in the competitive Chicagoland,;

« Continued clinical support from the University of Hlinois, which operates one of the largest medical schools in the
nation based on number of students;

» Healthy financial performance, which benefits from financial support from the state, with minimal reliance on
agency nurses over the last couple of years, generating solid MADS coverage; and

- Additional bond security from the University of lilinois College of Medicine's tuition and faculty practice plan
revenue.

Partially offsetting the above strengths, in our view, are UTHSFS's:

+ Continued light DCOH for the rating, with potentially higher continued capital spending over the next few years;

+ Payer mix skewed toward governmental payers, including a high reliance on Medicaid, as well as some reliance on
disproportionate share funds. Dependency on these funds remains a risk, especially in times of budgetary pressures.

« Reliance on the state of Illinois to continue to support payment of pension and other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) expenses and appropriations; and

+ Competitive service area, with the presence of several large and clinically strong academic medical centers and
health systems.

Environmental, social, and governance

We consider UIHSFS's overall social risks to be elevated, owing to the system's payer mix, which is highly reliant on
government payers. In addition, most of UIHSFS's nurses are part of the [llinois Nurses Association, with the current
contract set to expire in August 2024. Although we don't expect meaningful disruption from the contract negotiations,

any work stoppages as part of the contract negotiating process could negatively affect operating performance.

Although UIHSFS's has benefitted from state support to date, we also view the reliance on state support, such as
appropriations and pension costs borne by lllinois, as raising governance risk because it could be subject to volatility in

the event of budgetary pressures.

We also note that UIHSFS is overseen by the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois, which is not
self-perpetuating, rather than by its own board, although we believe that this structure has not hampered the system'’s

ability to execute its strategies. Finally, we view environmental risk as neutral in our credit rating analysis.

Outlook

The positive outlook reflects our view of UTHSFS's improving competitive position in a highly fragmented PSA,
ongoing strong relationship with the University of Hlinois, and our expectation of continued profitability in fiscal 2024,
albeit at a lower level. The outlook also incorporates the expectation that no significant debt will be issued over the

outlook period, and that balance-sheet metrics, including DCOH, will remain at least at current levels.
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both refer higher-acuity cases to the hospital and serve lower-acuity cases within the community.

ATTACHMENT 34



University of Hlinois Board of Trustees University of llinois Health Services Facilities System; Hospital; Joint
Criteria; System

Downside scenario
We could revise the outlook to stable if operating performance deteriorates and the system is unable to generate cash

flow that supporis upcoming spending plans, or if balance-sheet metrics progressively weaken to levels no longer
supportive of an 'A-' rating, A significant new money debt issuance to execute potential strategic initiatives without
commensurate improvement in the balance sheet would pressure ratings. Although unlikely at present, we could also
lower the UIHSFS rating if lowered the University of lllinois 'AA-' rating to & level equal to that of UTHSFS.

Upside scenario

We could raise the rating if UTHSFS is able to sustain solid operating performance and cash flow to continue to invest
strategically. We would also view favorably strengthening of the system's balance-sheet metrics, particularly DCOH,
and clarification of larger capital spending plans and funding of those plans. A higher rating would also be contingent

on UITHSFS maintaining or improving its solid enterprise profile.
Credit Opinion

Enterprise Profile: Strong

University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System

UIHSFS, a separate operating component of the University of lllinois, was established Jan. 22, 1997, by a bond
resolution by the University's Board of Trustees to allow a pledge of revenues [0 secure the system's debt. UIHSFS is
composed of the University of Tilinois Hospital and several outpatient clinics. It does not include the operations of the

University of lllinois' Medical Service Plans or College of Medicine.

The hospital, a 445-bed tertiary-care facility, is located within the Ilinois Medical District, a 560-acre special-use
zoning district approximately two miles west of the Loop, in Chicago. The district is also home to the Jesse Brown VA
Medical Center, Rush University Medical Center, and the John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital of Cook County.

PSA remains competitive

UIHSFS's PSA is composed of 56 zip codes in Cook County, and serves a population of almost 3 million. Chicago
remains a very competitive and fragmented market and has experienced consolidation in recent years. UIHSFS
competes with several academic medical centers in its PSA, including Loyola University Medical Center, Northwestern
Memorial Hospital, Rush University Medical Center, and the University of Chicago Medical Center. UTHSFS's latest
market share increased to 4.8%, with the expectation that the recent opening of the SCB and the new hospital atrium

will further solidify the system's competitive position.

Within its PSA, UIHSFS remains particularly present in areas such as transplants, hematology, neurosurgery, and
ophthalmology where it holds robust market share, and is a leader in robotic surgery. That said, uniike the other

academnic medical centers in the Chicagoland area, UIHSFES does not benefit from a community hospital network to
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University of Hlinois Board of Trustees University of Hlinois Health Services Facilities System; Hospital; Joint
Criteria; System

Completion of the SCB and atrium lobby

In fall 2022, UIHSFS completed on time and on budget the construction of a six-story, 200,000-square-foot SCB that is
linked to the hospital by a two-story bridge. The facility was designed to meet the increasing demand for outpatient
surgery, relieve capacity constraints on UIHSFS's existing surgery department, and allow for backfill of more complex
inpatient surgeries. The facility houses outpatient surgery, as well as the ophthalmology, otolaryngology,
gastroenterology, transplant, and urology clinics; imaging services; and a pharmacy. UIHSFS also completed in early
2023 the construction of a new 12,000-square-foot atrium lobby addition to the hospital at a cost of about $18 million.

The SCB project was structured such that Provident was responsible for the development and construction, with
UIHSFS subleasing the building from Provident on completion. Provident is simultaneously leasing the land on which
the SCB is situated for a period of 40 years from the Board of Trustees. The project was financed with the series 2020
bonds (par value of about $150 million) issued by the Illinois Finance Authority with Provident as the borrower, along
with $40 million from UIHSFS investments and internally earmarked for capital projects, and $10 million from
philanthropy. The Provident debt is secured by a leasehold mortgage as well as by lease payments made by UIHSFS
under a lease agreement. The Board of Trustees will become owner of the building at the end of the lease term with

Provident.

Changes to the management team

UIHSES's chief executive officer (CEQ), Michael Zenn, stepped down from his position on Sept. 15, 2023, to become a
part-time senior advisor for enterprise strategic initiatives in the Office of the UIC Vice Chancellor for Health Affairs.
He was replaced by Dr. Mark Rosenblatt, Executive Dean of the Ul College of Medicine, who will serve as interim
CEO. In addition, Scott Jones was named interim chief operating officer, while Janet Lin, M.D., was appointed chief

strategy officer, a new position within the organization.

Table 1
University of 1llinois He_alt‘h Services Facilities Syste

m--Enterprise statistics

--12 months ended June

30-- —-Fiscal year ended June 30--

2023 2022 2021 2020
PSA population {no.) N.A. 2,875,459 2,891,842 2,863,098
PSA market share (%) MN.A. 48 4.2 4.4
Inpatient admissions (no.) 16,708 16,386 16,343 16,587
Equivalent inpatient admissions {no.) 35,895 34,511 32,817 32,976
Emergency visits {no.) 47,773 46,363 41,412 45,089
[npatient surgeries {no.) 4,758 4,637 4,780 4,165
Outpatient surgeries (no. 11,531 10,814 9,986 8,909
Medicare case mix index 2,210 2 1800 2.1500 2.1000
FTE employees (no.} 4,200 4041 3,881 3,755
Active physicians (no.) 770 785 793 782
Based on net/gross revenues Net Net Net Net
Medicare (%) 24.5 27.2 28.0 24.0
Medicaid (%) 50.3 449 48.0 41.0
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University of Illinois Board of Trustees University of [llinois Health Services Facilities System; Hospital; Joint
Criteria; System

Table 1
University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System--Enterprise statistics {cont.) _

--12 months ended June

30-- --Fiscal year ended June 30--
2023 2022 2021 2020
Commercial/Blues (%} 20.7 22.4 20.0 240

Note: Inpatient admissions exclude normal newborn, psychiatric, rehabilitation, and long-term care facility admissions. PSA--Primary service
area. FTE--Full-time equivalent. N.A.--Not available.

Financial Profile; Adequate

Operating performance remains robust

Despite industry headwinds, UIHSFS's financial performance in fiscal 2023 remains robust, spurred by higher volumes,
particularly outpatient surgeries, which benefitted from the opening of the SCB, along with increasing clinical and
emergency room visits. Payer rate increases, as well as the recognition of a one-time $25 million reversal of accounts
receivable reserves, also contributed to the solid operating performance, while no CARES Act or other pandemic relief
funds were recognized during that year. Management expects the system will remain profitable in fiscal 2024, albeit at
a lower level, as it contends with increasing salary and wage pressures, inflation, and the absence of major one-time

benefits to revenues.

UIHSFS has historically reported strong MADS coverage above rating medians, and coverage is expected to remain
appropriate for the rating during the outlook period. MADS include the lease payments associated with the SCB
project.

Solid liquidity although DCOH remains thin for the rating

UIHSFS's liquidity, as measured by unrestricted DCOH at the end of the fiscal period, is sound, having improved from
2021 levels where the system was completing several large capital expenditure projects, including the purchase of
medical equipment for the SCB and the completion of the atrium lobby. Management expects DCOH will remain at

similar levels over the outlook period.

The system's cash, as well as certain investments, are pooled with other university funds to maximize returns and
provide equitabte distribution of investment returns. As of June 2023, unrestricted reserves totaled about $400 million,
which is higher relative to rating medians. We view UTHSFS's asset allocation strategy as very conservative, as only
6% of reserves were in equities, while 65% were allocated in fixed income, 24% were in cash, and 5% in alternative
investments. This asset allocation, which has been relatively unchanged to date, allows for the liquidation of 35% of

unrestricted reserves within seven days.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2024 are expected to total $75 million-$85 million, or approximately 185%-215% of
depreciation and amortization. Projects being considered include the construction of a clinical decision unit to enhance
UIHSFS's emergency medicine capabilities along with its capacity to serve the local community, as well as various

other projects to address existing capacity constraints and the aging of part of its infrastructure.
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Robust debt profile, with manageable contingent liabilities

Total debt outstanding on the system's balance sheet consists of the series 1997B, 2008, and 2013 bonds. Our analysis
of UIHSFS's debt profile also incorporates the debt issued by Provident for the SCB, as it is secured by the system's
lease payments and is of strategic importance to UIHSFES, with the financing structure a mechanism to optimize the
development of the project. Using this approach, we view the debt profile as robust, with leverage in line with rating
medians, while contingent liabilities-to-long-term debt and debt burden being low for the rating. As the new 2023 debt
issuance is a refinancing of the series 2013 bonds, it does not affect our view of UIHSFS's debt profile. No additional

debt issuance is expected over the outlook period.

We consider series 1997B and 2008 variable-rate demand bonds as contingent debt given the presence of acceleration
provisions. However, we believe that there is sufficient liquidity to cover any potential acceleration payments because

4% of unrestricted reserves could be received the same business day, and cover contingent liabilities more than 5.0x.

The university contributes to the State Universities Retirement System of lllinois, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer,
defined-benefit plan, with a special funding situation whereby the state makes substantially all actuarially determined

required contributions on behalf of the participating employers.

The university's OPEB obligations are also considered a special funding situation, with the State of lllinois the sole
legal entity responsible to make the OPEB contributions. The administration of these benefits and calculation of them
is under the purview of the lllinois Department of Central Management Services. Every year, UIHSFS recognizes in its
financial statements the proportionate share of the state's pension and OPEB relative to the system in expenses as a
special funding situation along with the recognition of an equal amount as nonoperating revenue. The impact on the

system's net position is therefore zero.

UTHSFS has one interest rate swap with a notional amount of about $12.85 million. It has no collateral posted and a

mark to market of negative $85 thousand as of June 30, 2023.

Table 2
University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System--Financial statistics

--12 months ended

June 30-- —-Fiscal year ended June 30--

2023 2022 2021 2020
Financial performance
Net patient revenue ($0005s) 1,141,970 1,005,600 848,921 780,015
Total operating revenue ($000s) 1,262,181 1,118,744 1,040,087 912,188
Total operating expenses (3000s} 1,198,889 1,066,871 983,705 915,895
Operating income (3000s) 63,282 51,873 56,392 {(3.7086)
Operating margin (%) 5.0 46 54 {0.4}
Net nonoperating income ($000s) 9,877 1,338 13,845 11,154
Excess income {$000s) 73,159 53211 70,237 7,448
Excess margin {%) 5.8 4.8 6.7 08
Operating EBIDA margin (%) 8.8 8.0 8.6 2.7
EBIDA margin (%) 9.6 8.1 9.8 38
Net available for debt service ($000s) 121,492 90,690 103,520 35,455
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Table 2

University of Hilinois Health Services Facilities System--Financial statistics {cont.)

--12 months ended

June 30-- --Fiscal year ended June 30--

2023 2022 2021 2020
Maximurn annual debt service ($000s) 17,176 17,176 17,176 17,176
Maximum annual debt service coverage {x) 7.1 5.3 6.0 2.1
Operating lease-adjusted coverage (x} 7.1 48 53 2.0
Liquidity and financial flexibility
Unrestricted reserves ($000s) 400,741 354,573 311,044 311,428
Unrestricted days' cash on hand 126.2 125.1 118.8 127.3
Unrestricted reserves/total long-term debt (%a} 163.2 3743 3285 314.1
Unrestricted reserves/contingent liabilities (%) 2,171.5 1,565.1 1,165.0 1,017.7
Average age of plant (years) 9.4 10.8 12.1 14.1
g/afital expenditures/depreciation and arnortization 1504 118.6 184.0 298.7

(3

Debt and liabilities
Total long-term debt ($000s) 245515 94,738 94,683 99,157
Long-term debt/ capitalization (%) 28.3 14.9 16.2 19.7
Contingent liabilities ($000s) 18,435 22,655 26,700 30,600
Contingent liabilities/total long-term debt (%) 7.5 239 28.2 309
Debt burden {%) 1.35 1.53 1.63 1.86
Defined-benefit plan funded status (%) NA. MNA. N.A. N.A.
Pro forma ratios*
Unrestricted reserves ($000s} N/A 354,573 311,044 N/A
Total leng-term debt ($000s) N/A 244,537 244,537 N/A
Unrestricted days' cash on hand N/A 125.1 118.8 N/A
Unrestricted reserves/total long-term debt (%) N/& 127.9 127.2 N/A
Long-term debt/capitalization {%o} N/A 322 333 N/A
Miscellaneous
Medicare advance payments {$000s) § 0 15,086 67,867 75,354
Short-term borrowings {$3000s) § 0 0 0 0
CARES Act grants recognized (S000s) 0 1,275 89,183 27,972
Risk based capital ratio (%} N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total net special funding ($000s) 117,245 358,997 480,374 339,563

*Pro forma for fiscal years 2021 and 2022 include the debt from Provident Group UIC - Surgery Center LLC. For fiscat 2023, the Provident debt is
included in UIHSFS's long-term debt. §Excluded from unrestricted reserves. long-term debt, and contingent liabilities. N.A.--Not available.
N/A--Not applicable.

Credit Snapshot

» Organization description: The UIHSFS is composed of the University of llinois Hospital and associated clinical
facilities providing patient care at the University of Illinois Medical Center. The system is a tertiary-care facility in
Chicago offering a full range of clinical services. it does not include the operations of the University of Illinois’
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Medical Service Plans or College of Medicine. The University of {ilinois is responsible for system management.

Related Research

« Through The ESG Lens 3.0: The [ntersection Of ESG Credit Factors And U.S. Public Finance Credit Factors, March
2, 2022
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MooDY'S

Rating Action: Moody's assigns A2 to University of Iinois' (IL) Health Services Facilities System’s
revenue bonds; outlook stable

27 Sep 2023

New York, September 27, 2023 — Moody's Investors Service has today assigned an A2 rating to University of illinois,
IL's Health Services Facilies System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 with a proposed par amount of
approximately $71 milion. Moody's also maintains Aa2 ratings on the university's issuer rating, Auxiliary Facilites
System revenue bonds, Certificates of Participation (COPS), Academic Lease revenue bonds, and an A2 rating on
outstanding Health Services Faciliies System (HSFS) bonds. Total direct debt outstanding was approximately $1.4
billion at June 30, 2022. The outlook is stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

Maintenance of University of llinois' (U of 1) Aa2 issuer rating reflects the university's excellent market strength,
supported by its membership in the Big 10 Academic Alliance, flagship and land grant status, and large operating
scope including significant healthcare operations. The university system enrolled nearly 95,000 students in fall 2022
across three campuses in Urbana-Champaign, Chicago, and Springfield. U of | continues to generate strong revenue
growth and recorded robust operating revenue of over $7 billion (including on-behalf payments from the state and
hospital system revenue) in fiscal 2022. The university and its related organizations held substantial total cash and
investments of over $7 billion at June 30, 2022, of which a large portion is unrestricted.

The assignment and maintenance of the A2 rating on the HSFS bonds incorporates sound cash flow and good debt
service coverage despite a challenging market, as well as potential for additional debt for capital projects.

The Aa2 rating for the AFS and COPs incorporates the broad nature of each individual revenue pledge, including
gross tuition and fees. For the COPs, the rating also reflects limited risk of nonpayment due to significant available
funds in the event of non-appropriation of funds by the state.

The Aa2 rating on lease revenue bonds reflect the credit characteristics of the Aa2 issuer rating and broad nature of
the pledge, including all available funds.

RATING OUTLOOK

The stable outiook reflects Moody's expectations of continued steady operating performance. It also incorporates our
expectations of continued sound debt service coverage for each individual revenue pledge.

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE OF THE RATING

- Organic strengthening of operations and revenue diversification over multiple years, significantly lessening the
university’s overall reliance on state funding support for operations

- Substantial growth in balance sheet reserves further mitigating the university's exposure to state credit deterioration
- For the HSFS bonds, sustained improvement in the hospital's brand and strategic positioning in the competitive

health care market with an increase in liquid reserves and sustained improverment in operating performance
ATTACHMENT 34



FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE OF THE RATING

- Deterioration of the State of linois' credit quality, or substantial reduction or significant delay in state funding
- Sustained weakening in federal funding for research or healthcare reimbursement

- Significant erosion of pledged revenue coverage of the AFS or HSFS bonds over multiple years

LEGAL SECURITY

Proposed and outstanding Health Services Faciliies System (HSFS) bonds are secured by (1) net revenue of the
system; (2) Medical Service Plan (MSP) revenue (faculty practice plan), net of bad debt expense; and (3) Coliege of
Medicine net tuition revenue (subordinated to the pledge of tuition and fees to the AFS Bonds). Although the health
system net revenue of $66 million (fiscal 2022) provides the first source of security, the pledges from MSP and the
College of Medicine provide enhancement. The pledge of MSP revenue and medical school tuition is up to maximum
annual debt service. Unaudited fiscal 2023 pledged revenue totaled $472 million compared to MADS of $9.5 million.

The Auxiliary Facilities System (AFS) bonds are payable from net revenue of the AFS, which is a closed system not
accessible to fund general operating expenses, and student tuition and fees. There is an additional bondstestand a
rate covenant that require net system revenue and student tuition and fees to be at least 2.0x maximum annual net
debt service. Fiscal 2022 pledged revenue were $1.5 billion compared with MADS of $31 million.

The Certificates of Participation (COPS) are payable from legally available non-appropriated funds cn a subordinate
basis from revenue pledged to other bonds. U of | covenants to include the required debt service in its annual budget
requests. The purchase contract and the university’s obligation to make installment payments can be terminated in the
event of both non appropriation by the state and the absence of other legally available funds to pay debt service.

Academic Faciliies Lease Revenue Bonds are secured by lease payments paid by University of llinois from all
available funds directly to the bond trustee to fund debt service. Payments are not subject to diminution, abaterment,
suspension or other reductions. The payments are from legally available non-appropriated funds, similar to the COPs.
There is no debt service reserve fund.

In addition, the University of llinois has outstanding lease obligations associated with Provident Group - UIC Surgery
Center LLC - University of llinois totaling nearty $150 milion. The bonds are legally payable by lease payments made
by HSFS under a triple net lease agreement. Lease payments are payable from the surplus revenue of HSFS, which
consists of the HSFS revenue remaining after all required payments for HSFS revenue bonds are paid.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Series 2023 Bonds will be used to cumrent refund all or a portion of the HSFS Series 2013 bonds
and to pay the costs of issuance.

PROFILE

University of Hlinois benefits from a national market position as the flagship and Land Grant institution in the State of
Hinois and membership in the Big Ten Academic Alliance. One of the nation's fargest comprehensive universities, total
revenues of over $7 billion in fiscal 2022. U of | had nearly 95,000 students enrolled in fall 2022 at its Urbana-
Champaign, Chicago, and Springfield campuses. It also has an extensive healthcare operation that includes an
academic medical center and muttiple health clinics in the City of Chicago.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was Higher Education Methodclogy publishegdrim Aggust 2621t aad
available at hitps:/fratings. moodys.comvime-documents/72158. Alfemnatfively, please see the Rating Methodologies
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page on https:/ratings.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.
REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For further specification of Moody's key rating assumptions and sensitivity analysis, see the sections Methodology
Assumptions and Sensitivity to Assumptions in the disclosure form. Moody's Rating Symbols and Definitions can be
found on https:/fratings.moodys.com/rating-definitions.

For ratings issued on a program, series, category/class of debt or security this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in refation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series,
category/class of debt, security or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing
ratings in accordance with Moody’s rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this announcement
provides certain regutatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support provider and in relation to
each particular credit rating action for securities that dertve their credit ratings from the support provider's credit rating.
For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the provisional rating
assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in
each case where the fransaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating
in a manner that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the issuer/deal page for the

respective issuer on https:/ratings.moodys.com.

The rating has been disciosed to the rated entity or its designated agent(s) and issued with no amendment resulting
from that disclosure.

This rating is solicited. Please refer to Moody's Policy for Designating and Assigning Unsolicited Credit Ratings
available on its website https://ratings.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply fo the credit rating and, if applicable, the related rating
outlook or rating review.

Moody's general principles for assessing environmental, social and govermanoe (ESG) risks in our credit analysis can
be found at https/ratings.moodys.com/documents/PBC_1288235.

The Giobal Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of Moody's affiliates outside
the EU and is endorsed by Moody’s Deutschland GmbH, An der Welle 5, Frankfurt am Main 60322, Germany, in
acoordance with Art.4 paragraph 3 of the Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on Credit Rating Agencies. Further
information on the EU endorsement status and on the Moody's office that issued the credit rating is available on

https:/ratings.moodys.com.

The Global Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of Moody's affiiates outside
the UK and is endorsed by Moody’s Investors Service Limited, One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London £14 5FA
under the law applicable to credit rating agencies in the UK. Further information on the UK endorsement status and on
the Moody's office that issued the credit rating is available on https.//ratings.moodys.com.

Please see htips://ratings.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody’s legal
entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the issuer/deal page on hitps://ratings.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures for each credit
rating.

Michael Osbom
LLead Analyst
Higher Education
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© 2023 Moody’s Corporation, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and
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CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT OPINIONS
OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE
SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S
(COLLECTIVELY, “PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY'S DEFINES
CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL
OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT
OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE MOODY'S RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR
INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY'S
CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOTADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT
ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS”), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE
NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE
QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR
COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY'S CREDIT
RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE
INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE,
SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FORANY
PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT
EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY
THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.
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MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR
PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR
FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED,
REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR
RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FORANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN
ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR REGULATORY
PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED
BENCHMARK.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable.
Because of the possibility of human or mechanicat error as well as other factors, however, all information contained
herein is provided "AS |S” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the
information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be
reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and
cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the credit rating process or in
preparing its Publications.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors an
suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or
damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to
use any such information, even if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or damages, induding but not limited to: (a
any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is
not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by MOODY'S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors an
suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including
but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willfui misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of,
MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in
connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FORANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT RATING,
ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S INANY FORM OR
MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MICO"),
hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and
commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any
credit rating, agreed to pay to Moody's Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it
fees ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s Investors ServicEBfst Hislitiin pedicies
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and procedures to address the independence of Moody’s Investors Service credit ratings and credit rating processes.
Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between
entities who hold credit ratings from Moody's Investors Service, inc. and have also publicly reported to the SEC an
ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading "investor
Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial
Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969
and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 872 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is
intended to be provided only to “wholesale dlients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001.
By continuing to acoess this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are
accessing the document as a representative of, a “‘wholesale dlient” and that neither you nor the entity you represent
will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G
of the Corporations Act 2001. MOCDY’S credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the
issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors.

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody’s Japan KK. (‘MJKK?}) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of
Moody's Group Japan G K., which is wholly-owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MCO. Moody’s SF Japan KK. (“MSFJ") is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MUKK. MSFJ isnota
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (‘NRSRO"). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are
Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an entity that is not a NRSRO and,
consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are
credit rating agencies registered with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA
Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal
bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have,

prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for credit ratings opinions and
services rendered by it fees ranging from JPY100,000 to approximately JPY550,000,000.

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organizational Background and Basis of Presentation

The University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System (System) comprises the University of
[llinois Hospital (Hospital) and Hospital-based clinics providing patient care at the University of
Iilinois - Chicago (UIC). The Hospital is a tertiary care facility located in Chicago, llinois offering a
full range of clinical services. Management of the System is the responsibility of the University of
[llinois (University).

The System was established by a Bond Resolution (Resolution) of the Board of Trustees of the
University of Illinois (Board) adopted on January 22, 1997. These financial statements have been
prepared to satisfy the requirements of the Series 1997B, 2008 and 2013 bond indentures. The
financial balances and activities of the System are also included in the University's financial
statements. The financial statements of the System are prepared in accordance with United States
(U.S.) generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The System is not a separate legal entity and has not presented
management’s discussion and analysis.

Significant Accounting Policies
(@)  Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting

The System prepared its financial statements as a business type activity, as defined by GASB
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management s Discussion and Analysis
for Public Colleges and Universities, using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Business type activities are those financed in whole or in part by
fees charged to external parties for goods and services.

Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Staterment of Cash Flows details the change in the cash and cash equivalents balances for
the fiscal year. Cash and all liquid investments with original maturities of ninety days or less
are defined as cash and cash equivalents.

(¢) Investments

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with guidelines defined by GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Fair value is determined for the
System’s investments based upon a framework described in Note 2(f). Bank deposits and
money market funds are recorded at cost.

Changes in fair value during the reporting period are reported as a net increase (decrease) in
the fair value of investments. Net investment income includes interest, dividends, and realized
gains and losses.

(&)  Inventories

Inventories of pharmaceutical and other supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market with
cost determined using the first-in. first-out method.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, which are or will be owned by the University, are recorded at cost or, if donated,
at acquisition value at the date of the gift. Intangible right-of-use lease and subscription assets
are recorded at cost based on the present value of expected payments over the term of the
respective lease or arrangement plus any payments made to the lessor or provider at or before
the commencement of the lease or arrangement term and certain direct costs that are ancillary
charges necessary to place the lease or subscription asset into service. Depreciation and
amortization of capital assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives (see below) of the assets, or over the shorter of the estimated useful lives or the lease or
arrangement term for intangible right-of-use lease or subscription assets. The System’s policy
requires the capitalization of land and collection purchases regardless of cost, equipment and
intangible right-of-use lease assets over $5,000, right-of-use subscription assets at $25,000,
purchased or internally developed software, easements, buildings and improvements over
$250,000 and purchased or internally developed infrastructure over $1,000,000. The System
does not capitalize collections, such as works of art or historical treasures, which are held for
public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service rather than capital
gain, unless they were previously capitalized as of June 30, 1999. Proceeds from the sale,
exchange or other disposal of any item belonging to a collection must be applied to the
acquisition of additional items for the same collection.

Estimated useful lives for capital assets are as follows:

Useful life Useful life
{in years) (in years)
Buildings: Improvements other than buildings:
Shell 50 Site improvements 20
Service systems 25 Infrastructure 25
Fixed equipment 15
Remodeling 25
intangibles: Moveable equipment:
Software 5-10 Equipment 3-20
Right-of-use Shorter of the estimated

useful lives or the lease
or arrangement term

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Losses on refundings for the System’s bonds are reported as deferred outflow of resources on
the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The losses on refundings are amortized over the
life of the debt using the straight-line method. The unamortized deferred loss on refunding at
June 30, 2023 was $814,774.

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Under hedge accounting, the University has determined that the interest rate swap agreement
on the System’s bonds payable, as a hedging derivative instrument. is an effective hedge.
Accordingly, changes in the fair value of the intercst rate swap, since being associated with the
related outstanding bonds, is reported as a deferred inflow of resources of $169.565 on the
accompanying Statement of Net Position. Additionally, an interest rate swap reassigned to new
debt, after a refunding of debt that the swap previously hedged, normally has an other than zero
fair value upon the reassociation. For a swap with a fair value of other than zero upon
reassociation with a hedgeable item, the fair value is amortized as an adjustment to interest
expense in a systematic manner.
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Deferred inflow of resources of $176,108 related to leases in which the System is lessor is
measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the
commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods. The deferred inflow of resources
is recognized as revenue over the term of the lease.

Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences for System personnel are charged as an operating expense,
using the vested method, based on earned and unused vacation and sick leave days including
the System’s share of Medicare taxes.

Premiunms

Premiums for the System’s bonds are reported within long-term debt and amortized over the
life of the debt issue using the effective interest method.

Net Position

The System’s resources are classified into net position categories and reported in the Statement
of Net Position. These categories are defined as (a) Net investment in capital assets — capital
assets net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and related outstanding debt balances
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, (b) Restricted
net position subject to externally imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the
System pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time, and (¢) Unrestricted
— net position not subject to externally imposed stipulations but may be designated for specific
purposes by action of management or the Board. The System first applies resources included
in restricted net position when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which resources
in both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.

Classification of Revenues

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position classifies the System’s
fiscal year activity as operating and nonoperating. Operating revenues generally result from
exchange transactions such as payments received for providing goods and services.

Certain revenue sources that the System relies on for operations including on-behalf for fringe
benefits, special funding situation for fringe benefits and investment income are defined by
GASB Statement No. 35 as nonoperating. In addition, transactions related to capital and
financing activities are components of net nonoperating revenues.

Other operating revenues of the System include capitation payments from Health Maintenance
Organizations (HMO) and Preferred Provider Organizations (PPO) to provide medical services
to subscribers, revenues from laboratory services provided to external organizations,
cafeteria/gift shop sales and other sources.

[n fiscal year 2023, the System specified $31,000,000 of its State appropriation for transfer to
the University of Illinois Hospital Services Fund, which is a special fund established in the
State Treasury pursuant to the State Finance Act, 30 ILCS 105/6z-30. This fund is owned and
operated by the [llinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services for the purpose of
making payments to the System for services rendered to Medicaid recipients. 1t is not part of
or a related organization of the University.
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Patient Services Revenue

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at
amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively
determined rates, discounted charges and per diem payments. Patient service revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others
for services rendered, including estimated adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payors, some of which are subject to audit by administrating agencies. These
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis and are adjusted in future periods. See note 8 for
the impact of such changes in estimate for fiscal year 2023.

The System provides allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable based upon
management’s best estimate of uncollectible accounts, considering type, age, collection
history, and other appropriate factors.

Charity Care

The policy of the System is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without
regard to their ability to pay for such services. The System provides care without charge or at
amounts less than its established rates to patients who meet the criteria of its charity care policy.
This policy defines charity care and provides guidelines for assessing a patient’s ability to pay.
Eligibility is based on patient qualification, financial resources and service criteria. Because
the Systern does not pursue collection of amounts determined to be charity care, they are not
reported as revenue.

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care provided. These
records include the amount of estimated costs for services rendered and supplies furnished
under its charity care policy. The estimated cost of charity care using the System’s cost-to-
charge ratio was $22,216,193 for fiscal year 2023. The ratio of costs to charges is calculated
based on the System’s total operating expenses. Unreimbursed costs of providing care 10
Medicare and Medicaid patients are not included as charity care.

Classification of Expenses

The majority of the System’s expenses are exchange transactions which GASB defines as
operating expenses for financial statement presentation. Nonoperating expenses include
transfers to the University of Jllinois Hospital Services Fund and capital financing costs.

On-Behalf for Fringe Benefits

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Grants and Other Financial Assistance, the System has reported outside sources of financial
assistance provided by other entities on behalf of the System during the year ended June 30,
2023, as described below.

Substantially all active employees participate in group health insurance plans provided by the
State and administered by the Illinois Department of Central Management Services (CMS).
The State contributed, on-behalf of the System, an estimated $68,161,825, which is reflected
as both nonoperating revenues and operating expenses within the Staternent of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position.
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Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the State Universities Retirement System (SURS) and additions to/deductions
from SURS fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by SURS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

For financial reporting purposes, the State and its public universities and community colleges
are under a special funding situation. A special funding situation exists when a non-employer
entity (the State) is legally responsible for making contributions directly to a pension plan that
is used to provide pensions to the employees of another entity (the University, including the
System) and the non-employer (the State) is the only entity with a legal obligation to make
contributions directly to a pension plan. The System recognizes its proportionate share of the
State’s pension expense relative to the System’s employees as nonoperating revenue and
special funding situation for fringe benefits operating expense.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (Act) (5 ILCS 375) authorizes the State
Employees Group Insurance Program (SEGIP), which includes activity for both active
employees and retirees, as a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan not administered as a
trust. Substantially all State and state public universities’ unit employees become eligible for
these OPEB plan benefits when they become annuitants of one of the State sponsored pension
plans. CMS administers these benefits for the annuitants with the assistance of the public
retirement systems sponsored by the State - General Assembly Retirement System (GARS),
Judges Retirement System (JRS), State Employees Retirement System (SERS), Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS), and SURS.

In order to fund SEGIP's pay-as-you-go obligations for both current employees and retirees,
the Act (5 ILCS 375/11) requires contributions based upon total employee compensation paid
from any State fund, including the University's State Appropriations Funds. Pursuant to State
Statute, the State covers the contributions for employees who are compensated from the
System’s operating funds. This relationship may be modified through the enactment of a Public
Act by the State’s highest level of decision-making authority exercised by the Governor and
the General Assembly pursuant to the State’s Constitution.

The University has two separate components of OPEB administered within SEGIP. The (1)
State of Illinois and its public universities are under a special funding situation for employees
who are not paid from gift, grant, and other similar funds, while (2) the University is responsible
for OPEB employer contributions when University employees are paid from gift, grant, and
other similar funds. The System is under a special funding situation since its employees are
not paid from gift, grant. and other similar funds.

A special funding situation exists when a non-employer entity (the State) is legally responsible
for making contributions directly to an OPEB plan that is used to provide OPEB to the
employees of another entity (the University, including the System) and the non-employer (the
State) is the only entity with a legal obligation to make contributions directly to an OPEB plan.
The System recognizes the proportionate share of the State's OPEB expense relative to the
System’s employees as nonoperating revenue and special funding situation for fringe benefits
operating expense.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conform ity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncementy

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations,
which was effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2021. This Statement provides
a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in
practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations and related note disclosures. The Statement achieves those objectives
by clarifying the existing definition of conduit debt obligation, establishing that a conduit debt
obligation is not a liability of the issuer, establishing standards for accounting and financial
reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations and improving required note
disclosures. Implementation of this pronouncement did not materially impact the System’s
financial statements.

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-
Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, which was effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2022, The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements (PPPs). This Statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply
the guidance in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that
are not required to be improved by the operator as part of the PPP arrangement are the only
underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the definition of an service concession
arrangement. This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for all
other PPPs. Implementation of this pronouncement did impact the System’s financial
statements since the agreement disclosed in Note 6(a) is a PPP that meets the definition of a
lease. The University followed Statement No. 87 and reported this PPP as a financed purchase.

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based
Information Technology Arrangements, which was effective for periods beginning after June
{5, 2022. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA: (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a
right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription
tiability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a
SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established
in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The System has included subscription assets and
liabilities within the Statement of Net Position and interest expense related to SBITAs within
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. See note 1(t} for impact to
the beginning net position for fiscal year 2023 related to implementation of this
pronouncement.
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The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, which was
effective for periods beginning after June |5, 2022. The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and accounting and financial
reporting for financial guarantees. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes
specific provisions about derivatives, leases, PPPs, SBITAs, London Interbank Offered Rate,
distribution of benefits, nonmonetary transactions, pledges of revenues, clarification of
provisions related to the focus of the government-wide financial statements, terminology
updates related deferred inflows and outflows and terminology related to resource flows
statements. Implementation of this pronouncement did not materially impact the System’s

financial statements.

()  Change in Accounting Principles

Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the System

adopted GASB Statement No. 96,

Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements, (GASB 96). Under this statement,
the System generally should recognize a right-of-use subscription asset (an intangible asset)
and a corresponding subscription fiability. The adoption of GASB 96 has been reflected as of

July 1, 2022. As reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Net

Position, beginning net position as of July 1, 2022, was restated for the effects of the System’s

adoption of GASB 96.

Balances, including beginning net position, impact by the System’s adoption of GASB 96, as

of July 1, 2022, were as follows:

July 1.2022 as July 1.2022 as
Previously Stated GASB 96 Impact Restated

Current assets $ 538,004,594 - 538,064,594
Noncurrent assets 332,104,696 8,164,621 340,269,317
Total assets 870,169.290 8.164,621 878,333,911
Deferred outflow of resources 1,291,170 1,294,170
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 871,460,460 8,164,621 879,625,081
Current liabilities $ 180,017,500 2,516,812 182.534.312
Nonecurrent liabilities 126,940,564 4.864,580 131,805,144
Total liabilities 306,958,064 7.381,392 314,339,436
Deferred infiow of resources 311.586 311,586
Net position 564,190.810 783,229 564,974,039
Total liabilities. deferred inflow of resources. and

net position ) 871.460,460 8,164,621 879,623,081

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The System has cash and certain investments that are pooled with other University funds for the
purpose of securing a greater return on investment and providing an equitable distribution of
investment return. Income is distributed based upon average quarterly balances invested in the

investment pool.

Nearly all of the University’s investments are managed by external professional investment
managers, who have full discretion to manage their portfolios subject to investment policy and

manager guidelines established by the University, and in the cas

e of mutual funds and other

commingled vehicles. in accordance with the applicable prospectus or limited partnershiﬁ agreement.
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The Board follows the State of Illinois Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, 760
[LCS 51/1-11, when managing the University’s investments. The Board fulfills its fiduciary
responsibility for the management of investments, including endowment farm real estate, by adopting
policies to maximize investment return with a prudent level of risk.

The following details the carrying value of the System’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments as
of June 30, 2023:

Money market funds $ 71.216
Claim on cash and on pooled investments 429,319,593
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 429,390,809

(a)  Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the University empioys multiple
investment managers, of which each has specific maturity assignments related to the operating
funds. The funds are structured with different layers of liquidity. Funds expected to be used
within one year are invested using the Barclay’s Capital 90-Day and Bank of America Merrill
Lynch 12-month Treasury Bill Index as performance benchmarks. Core operating funds are
invested in longer maturity investments. Core operating funds investment managers’
performance benchmarks are the Barclays Capital one-year to three-year Government Bond
Index. the Barclays Capital one-year-to-three-year Government Credit Bond Index, the
Barclays Capital Intermediate Government Credit Bond Index and the Barclays Capital
Intermediate Aggregate Bond Index.

The System’s non-pooled investments of $71,216, reported as cash equivalents, as of June 30,
2023, were invested in money market funds with maturities of less than one year.

Claim on cash and on pooled investments represents the System’s share of participation in the
University’s operating internal investment pool. At June 30, 2023, the University’s operating
internal investment portfolio had an effective duration for its interest-bearing securities of
1.4 years.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The University’s investment policy requires that the University's short-term
operating funds be invested in fixed income securities and other short-term fixed income
instruments (e.g., money markets). Fixed income securities shall be rated investment grade or
better by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Securities not
covered by the investment grade standard are allowed if, in the manager’s judgment, those
instruments are of comparable credit quality. Securities that fall below the stated minimum
credit requirements subsequent to initial purchase may be held at the manager’s discretion.

The University reports the credit ratings of fixed income securities and short-term instruments
using Standard and Poor’s and Moody s ratings. Securities with split ratings or with a different
rating assignment are disclosed using the rating indicative of the greatest degree of risk. At
June 30. 2023. the University's operating internal investment pool primarily consisted of
securities with credit ratings of A or better. The System’s non-pooled money market funds have
a credit rating of AAA.
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the University
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Exposure to custodial credit risk relates to investment securities
that are held by someone other than the University and are not registered in the University’s
name. The University’s investment policy does not limit the value of investments that may be
held by an outside party. At June 30, 2023, the System’s investments and deposits had no
custodial credit risk exposure.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the University’s
investment in a single issuer. The University’s investment policy provides that the total
operating funds portfolio witl be broadly diversified across securities in a manner that is
consistent with fiduciary standards of diversification. Issuer concentrations are limited to 5%
per issuer of the total market value of the portfolio at the time of purchase, or in the case of
securitized securities, an individual issuance trust. These concentration limits do not apply to
investments in money market funds, tri-party repurchase agreements or obligations of, or issues
guaranteed by, the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or U.S. government sponsored enterprises.

As of June 30, 2023, not more than 5% of the University’s total investments were invested in
securities of any one issuer, excluding money market funds, tri-party repurchase agreements or
obligations of, or issues guaranteed by, the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or U.S. government
sponsored enterprises,

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment or deposit. The University does not have an overarching policy related
to foreign currency risk; however, under each investment manager’s respective fund
agreement, the portfolio’s foreign currency exposure may be unhedged or hedged back into
U.S. dollars. The University’s operating fund investments generally are not exposed to foreign
currency risk.

The University invests in non-U.S. developed and emerging markets through commingled
funds invested in non-U.S. equities, fixed income, private equity and absolute return strategies.
As these funds are reported in U.S. dollars, both price changes of the underlying securities in
local markets and changes to the value of local currencies relative to the U.S. dollar are
embedded in investment returns.

Investments and Fair Value Measurements

GASB standards establish a framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
System has the ability to access as of the measurement date. Level 1 inputs would also include
investments valued at prices in active markets that the System has access 10 where transactions
occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide reliable pricing information.
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Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level | prices such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inpuis that reflect a reporting entity’s own assumptions
about what market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The System’s non-pooled investments of $71,216 as of June 30, 2023 are invested in money
market funds that are reported at cost.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023, reported as current assets, consisted of the following
amounts:

Patient accounts receivable, net of contractual allowances and charity care:

Medicaid managed care S 108,322,359
Blue Cross 44964913
Medicare managed care 41,960,027
HMO/PPO 33,357,486
Medicaid 24,112,637
Medicare 14,900,568
Commercial insurance 11,027,028
Self-pay and other 9,377,405

Total 288,022,423
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts ( 124,079,247)

Total patient accounts receivable, net $ 163,943,176

The System grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of net receivables from patients and third-party
payors at June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Medicaid managed care 39.1 %
Blue Cross 16.2
Medicare managed care 15.2
HMO/PPO 12.0
Medicaid 7.2
Medicare 54
Commercial insurance 4.0
Self-pay and other 0.9
100.0 %o

—————
—_————=

Capital Assets

The capital assets of the System are not pledged 1o secure outstanding indebtedness of the Board. The
System records right-of-use lease and subscription assets based on the present value of expected
payments over the term of the respective leases and arrangements. The expected payments are
discounted using the interest rate charged on the lease or arrangement, if available, and are otherwise
discounted using the System’s incremental porrowing rate. The System does not have any leases
subject to a residual value guarantee.
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Capital asset activity for the year e

nded June 30, 2023 is summarized as follows:

Capital Assets
Beginning Ending
balance, restated Additions Retirements Transfers balance
Nondepreciable capital assets
Land 770,917 % $ $ 5 770,917
Conslruetion in process 36,589.912 44 104,016 (55,509,280) 25,184,648
Total nondepreciable
capital assets 37,360,829 44,104,016 — (55.509,280) 23,955,565
Depreciable capital assets
Buildings 311,922,026 150,273,339 12.302,673) 24,156,254 184,050,964
Leasehold improvements 2,320,152 2,320,152
Equipment 133,747 871 8.612,006 (1,447.630) 29,200,865 190,118.512
Software 144,312,371 2,152,161 146,464,532
Total deprectable
capual assels 612,302,420 138,887,365 i3.745.303) 55,509,280 822,933,760
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 166,786,496 12,288,187 i1, 174,364) 177,900,319
Leaschold imptavements 2,320,150 2,320,150
Equipment 117,591,794 11.334 077 11,169,868} 127,936,003
Software 60,348,846 10,805,868 71,154,714
Total accumulated
depreciation 347,047,286 34.628,132 (2,344.232) — 379,331,186
Total depreciable
capital assets, net 263,255,134 124,259,233 1.401,073) 53.5049.280 443,622,574
Amortizable caputal assets
Right-of-use butldings 2,519,459 1.133,650 3,635,109
Right-of-use equipment 6.379.576 3.427.386 13372.79%) 9.449.371
Right-oi-use subscriptions 8,164 621 8.523 816 16,688,437
Total amortizable
capital assets 17.063,636 13,087,052 337,791) — 29,792,917
Less accumulated amortization
Right-of-use buldings 62,986 410,353 473,539
Right-of-use equipment 1.947,763 2483958 (337.791) 4,073,532
Right-of-use subscriptions 4,532,231 4,532,231
Total accumutated
amortization 2,010,751 7,426,742 (337,791 - 9,079,702
Total amoruzable
capital assets. nel 15.052,905 5,660,310 - 20.713.213
Total deprecizble and
amortzable capital assets. net 280308039 $  129.919,343 3 (1401,073) % 55.509,280 3 44,333,789

(5 Bonds Payable

During fiscal year 1997, the University issued $25,000.000
Revenue Bonds Series 1997B.
determined weekly and paid monthly. Proceed
new ambulatory care facility in Chicago, a me

costs incidental to the issuance of the bonds.

NG

The bonds are variable rate

of Health Services Facilities System
bonds which bear interest at a rate
s from the bonds were used to finance the costs of a
dical office building in Rockford, illinois and to pay
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During fiscal year 2008, the University issued $41,215,000 Variable Rate Demand Health Services
Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008. The bonds are variable rate bonds which
bear interest at a rate determined weekly. Proceeds from the bonds funded the redemption of the
Variable Rate Demand Heaith Services Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 on
July 28, 2008 and paid costs incidental to the issuance of the bonds. The difference between the
reacquisition price and net carrying amount of the old debt, loss on refunding, was $4,485,000. This
loss is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the old
debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The unamortized deferred loss on refunding is

disclosed in Note 1(f).

During fiscal vear 2014, the University issued $70,785,000 Health Services Facilities System
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013. The bonds are fixed rate bonds which bear interest payable on April |
and October | of each year. Proceeds from the bonds were used to finance the costs of certain
construction, renovation and equipment purchases for the System and to pay costs incidental to the
issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds. The original bond premium, $591,216, is deferred and amortized
over the remaining life of the issue.

Bonds payable and other obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Bonds Payable and Other Obligations
Rate on June 30 Fiscal year Beginning Ending Current
Series outstanding debt maturity dates balance Additions Deductions balance portion

Bonds payable:

19978 Vanable 2024 -2027 § 6800000 % $ (1,300,000 % 5,500,000 3 1,300,000
2008 Variable 2024 - 2027 15,833,000 (2.900,000) 12.935.000 3.060,000
2013 3% 10 6.25% 2028 - 2043 70,785,000 70,785,000
93,440,000 14,200,000) §9.240,000 4,360,000
Unamortized premium 342722 {5.802) 536,920
Total bonds pavable § 93482722 $ — % {4205802)% 89.776920 5 4,360,000

The bonds do not constitute obligations of the State. Bond principal and interest payments are funded
from revenues pledged from (a) System net revenues, principally consisting of all charges, income
and revenues received from the continued use and operation of the System remaining after providing
sufficient funds for the reasonable and necessary cost of currently maintaining, repairing, insuring
and operating the System, (b) Medical Service Plan (MSP) revenues net of bad debt expense and
contractual allowances and (¢) UIC College of Medicine tuition revenue.

These revenues for the year ended June 30, 2023 were as follows:

System net revenues 5 114,101,032
Adjusted MSP revenues 304,005,932
UIC College of Medicine student tuition 53,656,717
Total $ 471,763,681
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The table below shows the amount of revenues pledged for future principal and interest payments
on the bonds:

Pletigid revenues

Debt service
Source of Future to pledged
revenue revenues Term of revenues
Bond issue(s) Purpose pledged pledgedl commitment (current year)
Svstem net revenues, MSP
Series 1997B. Additions to System revenues net of bad debt
2008 and 2013 and Refunding and contractual allowances.
Callege of Medicine wition 5§ 147.315.329 2043 1.92%

' Totak estimated furure principal and interest payments on bonds

The resolutions authorizing the bonds provide for the establishment of separate funds as follows:
Revenue Fund, Project Fund, Repair and Replacement Reserve, Equipment Reserve, Bond and
Interest Sinking Fund and Development Reserve. All income and revenues received from the
continued use and operation of the System, as provided for by the Bond Resolution, are to be
deposited in the Revenue Fund and used to pay necessary operation and maintenance expenses of the
System. In the event of default, the bond owners may sue to command performance. The Bond
Resolution also requires transfers to funds as follows:

Project Fund — at the discretion of the University Comptroller, amounts not needed to complete
construction and renovation projects specified in the Bond Resolution are required to be transferred
either to the Repair and Replacement Reserve or to the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund.

Repair and Replacement Reserve — an amount calculated as specified in the Bond Resolution to
provide for the cost of unusual maintenance and repairs.

Equipment Reserve —an amount approved by the Board for the acquisition of movable equipment to
be installed in the facilities constituting the System. The reserve may not exceed 20% of the book

value of the movable equipment of the System.

Bond and Interest Sinking Fund — amounts transferred into the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund
sufficient to pay principal and interest as it becomes due on the outstanding bonds.

Development Reserve — an amount approved by the Board for System development. No transfers
were authorized by the Board during the year ended June 30, 2023. and there was not a balance in
the reserve at June 30, 2023,

The System made all required transfers for the year ended June 30, 2023.

After fulfiliment of the provisions described above, the surplus, if any, remaining in the Revenue
Fund may be used at the Board’s option (a) to redeem bonds of the System which are subject to early
redemption, (b) to improve or add facilities to the System. or (c) for any other lawfui purpose.
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Assets restricted by Bond Resolution were held for the foliowing purposes at June 30, 2023:

Restricted assets:

Cash equivalents and claim on cash and

pooled investments $ 18,533,966
Purpose:

Repair and replacement reserve $ 17,210,958

Bond and interest sinking fund 1,433,216

Total assets limited as to use 18,644,174

Less amounts required for current liabilities (1,110,208)

Total for long-term use $ 17,533,966

(@)

Health Services Facilities System Variable Rate Debt and Interest Ruate Swap Agreement
Demand Provisions

The System’s Series 1997B and 2008 bonds mature serially through October 2026. These
bonds have variable interest rates that are adjusted periodically (i.e., daily, weekly, or monthly),
generally with interest paid at the beginning of each month. The bonds are subject to purchase
on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest on seven days’
notice and delivery to the University’s remarketing agents. The University pays the
remarketing agent fees on the outstanding bond balance. If the remarketing agent is unable to
resell any bonds that are “put” to the agent, the University has letter of credit agreements with
a liquidity facility entity. The fees on the letters of credit are based on outstanding bonds plus
pro forma interest. The University, in the event a liquidity facility is utilized, has
reimbursement agreements with associated financial entities. [fa liquidity advance has not been
reimbursed for 90 days, the letter of credit automatically converts to a term loan. The term loan
is required to be repaid in five equal quarterly installments, at an interest rate based on whether
it was an outstanding advance or an event of default. The outstanding advance interest rate
would be the base rate which is the greater of prime plus 1%, Federal Funds plus 2% or 7%
and the event of default interest rate would be the base rate plus 3%. The due date of the initial
payment on the term loan is one year from the conversion date. The letter of credit agreements
contain provisions that the University may terminate and replace the letter of credit agreement
so long as the University has paid all of the obligations owed to the liquidity facility entity. In
the event of default, the liquidity facility entity may cause the bonds to be subject to a
mandatory tender.

The required future interest payments for these variable rate bonds have been calculated using
the current interest rate, based upon short-term tax-exempt rates, or the synthetic fixed rate, as
illustrated in the table below. Certain parties and terms of the remarketing and liquidity facility
agreements are disclosed in the table below: .

Varinble rate bonds ut June 30, 2023

Interest rate

at Junc 30, Remarketing Remarketing Liquidity facitity
Bond issues 2023 agent fee Bank Expiration Insured by Fee
HSFS. Series 19978 400% JPMorgan Securities 0.07%  Wells Fargo May 30,2024 Letter of Credit 0.59%
HSFS. Serics 2008 v Guoldman Sachs 0.07 Wells Fargo May 30,2024 Letter of Credit 0.59
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Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In fiscal year 2009, the University entered into a variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement
(swap) with Loop Financial Products [ LLC (Loop). The purpose of this interest rate swap was
to hedge the Series 2008 debt by effectively changing the variable interest rate on the bonds to
a synthetic fixed rate. In May 2022, Loop exercised an option in the agreement to assign the
swap to its credit support provider, Deutsche Bank AG (DBAG).

When the swap was entered, the notional amount was $40.875.000. In accordance with the
swap, the University makes monthly payments to the counterparty (DBAG) equal to 3.534%
of the notiona! amount and receives monthly payments from DBAG equal to 68% of the one-
month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The swap will terminate in October 2026. As
of June 30, 2023, the notional amount of the swap was $1 2,850,000.

The University engaged a third-party consultant to determine the fair value of the swap. The
fair value provided by the consultant was derived from proprietary models based upon well-
recognized financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant market conditions. The
fair value (Level 2 measurement) is recognized as a noncurrent liability and was $84,804 as of
June 30, 2023.

In connection with the swap, the University may be exposed to various types of risk:

Credit Risk: As of June 30, 2023, the University was not exposed to credit risk because the
swap had a negative fair value. If interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes
positive, the University would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair
value. The counterparty may have to post collateral in the University's favor in certain
conditions, and the University would never be required to post collateral in the counterparty’s
favor.

[nterest Rate Risk: During fiscal year 2023, rising interest rates exposed the University to
interest rate risk, which positively affected the fair value of the swap.

Termination Risk: The swap is scheduled to terminate in October 2026. The University has the
option to terminate the swap early. The University or Loop may terminate the swap if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. The University may terminate the swap
if both credit ratings of the counterparty (DBAG) fall below BBB+ as issued by Standard &
Poor’s and Baal as issued by Moody’s Investors Service. As of June 30, 2023, the DBAG
credit rating by Standard & Poor’s was A- and by Moody’s Investors Service was A2,

[fthe swap is terminated, the Series 2008 variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic
fixed interest rate. In addition, if at the time of termination, the swap has a negative fair value,
the University would be liable to DBAG for a payment equal to the swap's fair value.

Basis Risk: The swap exposes the University to basis risk should the relationship between
LIBOR and the variable weekly rate determined by the remarketing agent change, changing
the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the difference in rates
widening, the expected cost savings may not be realized.

Other Risks: Since the swap extends to the maturity of the Series 2008 bonds, it does not expose
the University to rollover risk. In addition, the University is not exposed to foreign currency
risk associated with this swap. The University is not exposed to market access risk as of June
30, 2023. However, if the University decides to issue refunding bonds and credit is more costly
at that time. it could be exposed to market access risk.
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(b)

Debt Service Requirements

Future estimated debt service requirements for the Series 1997B, 2008 and 2013 Bonds at June
30, 2023 were as follows:

Principal Interest

2024 i 4,660,000 § 4,817,770
2025 4,525,000 4,651,700
2026 4,695,000 4,481,364
2027 4.575,000 4312314
2028 2,725,000 4,188,413
2029 - 2033 16,250,000 18,312,681
2034 - 2038 21,955,000 12,610,750
2039 - 2043 29,855,000 4,700,537

Total debt service 89,240,000 §  58,075.529
Unamortized premium 536,920

Total bonds payable S 89,776,920

The required debt service for the variable rate Series 1997B and 2008 Bonds has been
calculated using the current interest rate of 4.00% and 3.72%, respectively, over the remaining
life of the bonds.

Using the actual rate in effect as of June 30, 2023 (3.72% for Series 2008), debt service
requirements of the Series 2008 variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current
interest rates remain the same for their term, were as follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond
interest payments and net swap payments will also vary.

Health Services Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2608
Variable-Rate Debt Service Requirements

Variable rate bonds Interest rate
Principal Interest swaps, net Total
2024 h 3.060,000 3 406,038 $ (20,1381 $ 3,445,900
2025 3,225,000 288.114 (14,288} 3,498,826
2026 3,295,000 166,408 (8,249) 3.453,159
2027 3,375,000 41,850 (2,074) 3,414,776
Total 8 12,955,000 § 902,410 S {44,749y § 13,812,661

(6) Finance Purchases, Leases and Software Subscriptions

(a)

Finance Purchase Arrangements

The System has finance purchase arrangements with external parties related to hospital space
and equipment with remaining lease terms ranging from three years to thirty-three years. The
renewal and termination options are not included in the assets or liability balance until they are
reasonably certain of exercise. The term does not include periods of a finance purchase that
include a mutual termination option, Variable payments that are not fixed in nature and non-
rent charges are not included in the finance purchase payable. The System did not have any
finance purchases with variable lease payments as of June 30, 2023.
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One of these finance purchase arrangements is a private-public partnership. The University
entered into several agreements with private enterprises to construct the Ul Health Specialty
Care Building (SCB), which includes an outpatient surgery center and five specialty clinics.
The University has partnered with Provident Group-UIC Surgery Center LLC (Provident) and
a developer, UIH ASC Development, LLC (Developer). Through agreements among the
parties, Provident was responsible for the design, development, and construction of the SCB.
The Illinois Finance Authority (IFA) issued $149,845,000 of tax-exempt bonds with fixed
interest rates of 4.00% and 5.00% in August 2020 and loaned the proceeds to Provident to fund
a portion of the SCB project cost. The University leased the land on which the SCB was built
to Provident over a period of 40 years and has entered a sublease with Provident to lease the
SCB facility from Provident. Upon the termination or expiration of the land lease, the SCB,
any improvements, fixtures, equipment, and all personal property attached to or within the SCB
shall be owned by the University.

Finance purchase payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Finance Purchase Payable

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Deductions balance portion
Finance purchase payable 5 - 1 150,275,359 s (1362541 § i50,139,105 5 2,124,692

As of June 30, 2023, the scheduled fiscal year maturities of finance purchase liabilities and
related interest are as follows:

Principal Interest
2024 S 2,124,692 § 6,312,664
2025 2,227,996 6.205,360
2026 2,336,417 6,092,814
2027 2,350,000 5,974,650
2028 2,465,000 5,854,275
2029-2033 14,305,000 27.244,375
2034-2038 18.225,000 23,271,400
2039-2043 22,405,000 19,051,100
2044-2048 27,265,000 14,098,900
2049-2053 33,175,000 8,073,500
2054-2056 23,260,000 1,420,000

$ 150,139,105 $ 123,599,038

(b)  Lessee Arrangements

The System leases warehouse space and equipment from external parties with remaining lease
terms ranging from less than one year to ten years. The renewal and termination options are
not included in the right-of-use assets or lease liability balance until they are reasonably certain
of exercise. The lease term does not include periods of a lease that include a mutual termination
option. Variable payments that are not fixed in nature and non-rent charges are not included in
Jeases payable. The System did not have any leases with variable lease payments as of June 30,
2023.
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(c)

(d)

Leases payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Leases Payable

Beginning Ending Current
balance Additions Deductions balance portion
Leases pavable 5 6,882,236 B 4,500,348 S (2.680.876F S 8701708 5 2,302,703

As of June 30, 2023, the scheduled fiscal year maturities of lease liabilities and related interest
are as follows:

Principal Interest
2024 $ 2,302,703 § 183,251
2025 2,092,776 137,686
2026 1,246,673 96,100
2027 1,063,564 67,913
2028 468212 47,395
2029-2033 1,527.780 80.410

5 8,701,708 % 612,755

Lessor Arrangements

The System leases space within and attached to its buildings to external parties. These
arrangements have terms ranging from less than one year to three years. In accordance with
GASB 87, the System records lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources based on the
present value of expected receipts over the term of the respective leases. The expected receipts
are discounted using the interest rate charged on the lease. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023, the System recognized revenues related to these lease agreements totaling $147,213,
including interest and other related revenues. Of these amounts recognized during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023, the System recognized no revenue related to variable receipts that
were not previously included in the measurement of the lease receivable.

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The System has many subscription-based information technology agreements (SBITAs) with
remaining terms ranging from less than one year to seven years. The renewal and termination
options are not included in the subscription asset or subscription liability balance until they are
reasonably certain of exercise. The SBITA term does not include periods that include a mutual
termination option.

Certain System SBITAs contain both fixed and variable subscription payments. These exist
primarily within the agreements based on the consumer price index (fixed in substance) or other
maintenance costs, which are paid based on actual costs incurred by the vendor (not fixed). The
remaining SBITA do not contain variable lease payments. Variable payments that are not fixed
in nature and non-subscription charges are not included in the subscription liability. The total
expenditures for variable payments not previously included in the measurement of the
subscription liability during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were $795.287.

Additionally. the System recognized termination penalties for SBITAs held at June 30, 2023.
These amounts were not included in the measurement of the subscription liability and were
minimal. There were no commitments for SBITAs that have not vet commenced.
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Subscription payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Subscription Payable

Beginning
balatce, Ending Current
restated Additions Deductions balance portion
Subscriptions payable $ 7,380,391 S 8102 dd3 S (5688436) S 9,795,379 S 4,110,458

As of June 30, 2023, the scheduled fiscal year maturities of subscription liabilities and related
interest are as follows:

Principal Interest
2024 5 4,110,458 % 266,147
2025 2,677,726 164,291
2026 1,246,653 90,239
2027 893.513 53,239
2028 446,343 25.744
2029-2033 420,886 12,801

3 9,795,379 § 612,461

Accrued Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences includes earned and unused vacation and sick leave, including the
System’s share of Medicare taxes, valued at the current rate of pay.

Section 14a of the State Finance Act (30 ILCS 105/14a) provides that employees eligible to
participate in the State Universities Retirement System or the Federal Retirement System are eligible
for compensation at time of resignation, retirement, death or other termination of System employment
for one-half (1/2) of the unused sick leave earned between January 1, 1984 and December 31, 1997.
Any sick leave days that were earned before or after this period of time are noncompensable.

Changes in Compensated Absences Balance

Balance, beginning of year § 35,597,796
Additions 3,551,926
Deductions (3,973,839)
Balance. end of year 35.175,883
Less curtent portion (4,453,599)
Balance. end of year — noncurrent portion h 30,722,284

Net Patient Service Revenue

Approximately 95% of the System’s net patient service revenue was derived from Medicare,
Medicaid and managed care programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Reimbursement under these
programs provided payments to the System at amounts different from its established rates, based on
a specific amount per case. or a contracted price. for rendering services to program beneficiaries. The
System records contractual allowances in the current period representing the difference between
charges for services rendered and the expected payments under these programs and adjusts them in
future periods as final settlements through cost reports or other means as determined.
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Net patient service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2023 was derived from the following payers:

Medicaid managed care 3 1,257,627.726
Medicare managed care 537,579,794
Medicare 515,048,956
Biue Cross 400,021,978
HMO/PPO 371,468,302
Self-pay and other 211,789,635
Medicaid 188,799,514
Commercial insurance 48,095,422
Total gross revenue 3,530,431,327
Contractual allowances (2,408,945,913)
Provision for uncollectible accounts 20,484,298
Net patient service revenue N 1,141,969,712

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare and Medicare Managed Care: Inpatient services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Inpatient services are paid
at prospectively determined rates that are based on the patients’ diagnosis. Outpatient payments to
the Hospital are based on a predetermined package rate based on services provided to patients. The
Hospital is reimbursed for certain services at tentative rates with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary. The System’s Medicare cost reports have been audited by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary through June 30, 2018.

Medicaid and Medicaid Managed Care: Services are reimbursed at prospectively determined rates.
Medicaid payment methodologies and rates for services rendered are subject to change and the
amount of funding available to the University of [llinois Hospital Services Fund. Such changes could
have a significant effect on the System’s revenues.

HMO/PPO: The System has payment agreements with certain HMOs and PPOs. The basis for
payment under these agreements inciudes prospectively determined rates-per-discharge. discounts
from established charges, prospectively determined daily rates and capitated per-member per-month
rates.

For the vear ended June 30, 2023, changes in estimates have been recognized as an increase in net
patient service revenue of approximately $890,000 as a result of settled cost reports and changes in
estimates related to services rendered in previous years.
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Retirement and Postemployment Benefits

fa)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

General Information about the Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description: The University contributes to SURS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan with a special funding situation whereby the State makes substantially all
actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS
was established July 21, 1941 to provide retirement annuities and other benefits for staff
members and employees of State universities, certain affiliated organizations. and certain other
State educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents and other beneficiaries
of such employees. SURS is considered a component unit of the State’s financial reporting
entity and is included in the State’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as a pension trust
fund. SURS is governed by Chapter 40, Act 5, Article |5 of the /llinois Compiled Statutes.
SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by accessing the website at
WWW.SUrs.org.

Benefits Provided: A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941. Public Act 90-04438
enacted effective January 1, 1998, established an alternative defined benefit program known as
the portable benefit package. The traditional and portable plan Tier 1 refers to members that
began participation prior to January 1, 2011. Public Act 96-0889 revised the traditional and
portable benefit plans for members who begin participation on or after Januvary 1, 2011, and
who do not have any other eligible reciprocal system service. The revised plan is referred to as
Tier 2. New employees are allowed six months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable
election whether to participate in either the traditional or portable benefit plans. A summary of
the benefit provisions as of June 30, 2022 can be found in the Financial Section of SURS
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Contributions: The State is primarily responsible for funding SURS on behalf of the individual
employers at an actuarially determined amount. Public Act 88-0593 provides a statutory
funding plan consisting of two parts: (i) a ramp-up period from 1996 to 2010 and (ii) a period
of contributions equal to a level percentage of the payroll of active members within the System
to reach 90% of the total Actuarial Accrued Liability by the end of fiscal year 2045. Employer
contributions from “trust, federal, and other funds” are provided under Section 15-155(b) of
the Illinois Pension Code and require employers to pay contributions which are sufficient to
cover the accruing normal costs on behalf of applicable employees. The employer normal cost
for fiscal year 2022 and fiscal year 2023, respectively, was 12.32% and 12.83% of employee
payroll. The normal cost is equal to the value of current year’s pension benefit and does not
include any allocation for past unfunded liability or interest on the unfunded liability. Plan
members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary except for police
officers and fire fighters who contribute 9.5% of their earnings. The contribution requirements
of plan members and employers are established and may be amended by the State’s General
Assembly.

Participating employers make contributions toward separately financed specific liabilities
under Section 15-139.5(e) of the Illinois Pension Code (relating to contributions payable due
to the employment of “affected annuitants™ or specific return to work annuitants), Section 13-
155(g) (relating to contributions payable due to earning increases exceeding 6% during the
final rate of earnings period), and Section 13-155 (j-5) (relating to contributions payable due
to earnings exceeding the salary set for the Governor).
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Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Defined Benefit Pensions

Net Pension Liability: The net pension liability (NPL) was measured as of June 30. 2022. At
June 30, 2022, the SURS reported a NPL of $29,078,053,857.

Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability: The amount of the proportionate share
of the NPL to be recognized for the System is $0. The proportionate share of the State’s NPL
associated with the System is $2,722,736,087. This amount is not recognized in the System’s
financial statements. The NPL and total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined
based on the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used in
the proportionate share of net pension liability is the actual reported pensionable contributions
made to the SURS during fiscal year 2021.

Defined Benefit Pension Expense: At June 30, 2022, SURS defined benefit plan reported a
collective net pension expense of $1,903,314,699.

Employer Proportionate Share of Defined Benefit Pension Expense: The employer
proportionate share of collective defined benefit pension expense is recognized as nonoperating
revenue with matching operating expense (special funding situation for fringe benefits) in the
financial statements. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of collective
defined benefit pension expense is the actual reported pensionable contributions made to the
SURS during fiscal year 2021. As a result, the University recognized revenue and defined
benefit pension expense of $872,498,244 from this special funding situation during the year
ended June 30, 2023, of which $178,217,641 was related to the System.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Defined Benefit
Pensions: Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the SURS that
is applicable to future reporting periods. Conversely, deferred inflows of resources are the
acquisition of net position by SURS that is applicable to future reporting periods.

SURS Collective Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 31.973.496 $ 28.674.599
Changes in assumption 270,362,441 082.954,268
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 31,628,935
Total A 342,964,872 § 1.011.628.867

e —T————————
=

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of
Resources by Year to be Recognized in Future Pension Expenses

Year Ending June 30 Net Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
2023 £ (332,941,204)
2024 (528,966,820)
2025 (249,290,775}
2026 442,534,804
2027
T'hereafter
Total S (668.663.995)
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Assumptions and Other Inputs

Actuarial assumptions: The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2017 through June
30, 2020. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods inciuded in the measurement:

Inflation 2.25 percent
Salary increases 3.00 to 12.75 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.50 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 employee and retiree gender distinct tables with
projected generational mortality and a separate mortality assumption for disabled participants.

The long-term expected rate of return on defined benefit pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return were adopted by the plan’s trustees after considering input from the plan’s investment
consultant and actuary.

For each major asset class that is included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2022, these best estimates are summarized in the following table:

Weighted Average Long-
Term Expected Real Rate

Defined Benefit Plan Strategic Policy Allocation of Return (Arithmetic)
Traditional Growth

Global Public Equity 38.0% 7.62%
Stabilized Growth

Public Credit Fixed Income 9.0% 4.20%

Credit Real Assets 4.5% 4.98%

Optiens Strategies 2.5% 4.91%

Private Credit 1.0% 7.45%
Non-Traditional Growth

Private Equity 10.5% 11.91%

Non-Core Real Assels 2.5% 9.43%
Inflation Sensitive

U.S. TIPS 5.0% 1.23%
Principal Protection

Core Fixed Income 8.0% 1.79%
Crisis Risk Offset

Systematic Trend Following 10.0% 4.33%

Alternative Risk Premia 5.0% 3.59%

Long Duration 4.0% 2.16%
Total 100.0% 6.08%
Inflation 2.25%
Expected Arithmetic Return 8.33%
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(b)

Discount Rate: A single discount rate of 6.39% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return on pension plan investments
of 6.50% and a municipal bond rate of 3.69% (based on the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal GO
AA Index as of June 30, 2022). The projection of cash flows used to determine this single
discount rate were the amounts of contributions attributable to current plan members and
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the statutory contribution rates under
SURS funding policy. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
and future contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments through the year 2076.
As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
projected benefit payments through the year 2076, and the municipal bond rate was applied to
all benefit payments after that date.

Sensitivity of the SURS Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: Regarding the
sensitivity of the NPL to changes in the single discount rate, the fotllowing presents the State’s
NPL, calculated using a single discount rate of 6.39%, as well as what the State’s NPL would
be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is t-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher:

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease 5.39% Rate Assumption 6.39% 1% Increase 7.39%

$35,261,802,968 $29,078.053,857 $23,928,731,076

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements, including the plan’s net
position, can be found in SURS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report by accessing the
website at www.SURS. org,

Defined Contribution Pension Plan

General Information about the Defined Contribution Pension Plan

Plan Description: The University contributes to the Retirement Savings Plan (RSP)
administered by SURS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan
with a special funding situation whereby the State makes substantially all required
contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS was established July 21, 1941
and provides retirement annuities and other benefits for staff members and employees of State
universities, certain affiliated organizations, and certain other State educational and scientific
agencies and for survivors, dependents and other beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is
governed by Chapter 40, Act 5. Article 15 of the filinois Compiled Statutes. SURS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by accessing the website at
www.surs.org. The RSP and its benefit terms were established and may be amended by the
State’s General Assembly.

Benefits Provided: A defined contribution pension plan, originally called the Self-Managed
Plan, was added to SURS benefit offerings as a result of Public Act 90-0448 effective January
1, 1998. The plan was renamed the RSP effective September 1, 2020, after an extensive plan
redesign. New employees are allowed six months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable
election whether to participate in either the traditional or portable defined benefit pension plans
or the RSP. A summary of the benefit provisions as of June 30, 2022, can be found in SURS
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report — Notes to the Financial Statements.
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(c)

Contributions: All employees who have elected to participate in the RSP are required to
contribute 8.0% of their annual covered earnings. Section 15-158.2(h) of the Illinois Pension
Code provides for an employer contribution to the RSP of 7.6% of employee earnings. The
State is primarily responsible for contributing to the RSP on behalf of the individual employers.
Employers are required to make the 7.6% contribution for employee earnings paid from “trust,
federal, and other funds” as described in Section 15-155(b) of the lilinois Pension Code. The
contribution requirements of plan members and employers were established and may be
amended by the State’s General Assembly.

Forfeitures: Employees are not vested in employer contributions to the RSP until they have
attained five years of service credit. Should an employee leave SURS-covered employment
with less than five years of service credit, the portion of the employee’s RSP account designated
as employer contributions is forfeited. Employees who later return to SURS-covered
employment will have these forfeited employer contributions reinstated to their account, so
long as the employee’s own contributions remain in the account. Forfeited employer
contributions are managed by SURS and are used both to reinstate previously forfeited
contributions and to fund a portion of the State’s contributions on behalf of the individual
employers. The vesting and forfeiture provisions of the RSP were established and may be
amended by the State’s General Assembly.

Pension Expense Related to Defined Contribution Pensions

Defined Contribution Pension Expense: For the year ended June 30, 2022, the State’s
contributions to the RSP on behalf of individual employers totaled $89,770,940. Of this
amount, $80,902,699 was funded via an appropriation from the State and $8,868,241 was
funded from previously forfeited contributions.

Employer Proportionate Share of Defined Contribution Pension Expense: The employer
proportionate share of collective defined contribution pension expense is recognized as
nonoperating revenue with matching operating expense (special funding situation for fringe
benefits) in the financial statements. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of
collective defined contribution pension expense is the actual reported pensionable
contributions made to the RSP during fiscal year 2022. The University’s share of pensionable
contributions was 56.0744%. As a result, the University recognized revenue and defined
contribution pension expense of $50,338,541 from this special funding situation during the year
ended June 30, 2023, of which $10,282,314 was related to the System. The amount that
constituted forfeitures for the University was $4,972,815.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan description: The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (Act), as amended,
authorizes the SEGIP to provide health, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits for certain
retirees and their dependents. Substantially all of the University’s full-time employees are
members of SEGIP. Members receiving monthly benefits from the GARS, JRS. SERS, TRS,
and SURS are eligible for these other post-employment benefits (“OPEB™). The eligibility
provisions for the SURS members were defined within Note 9(a).

The State recognizes SEGIP OPEB benefits as a single-employer defined benefit plan, which
does not issue a stand-alone financial report.
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Benefits provided: The health, dental, and vision benefits provided to and contribution amounts
required from annuitants are the result of collective bargaining between the State and the
various unions representing the State’s and the State universities’ employees in accordance
with limitations established in the Act. Therefore, the benefits provided and contribution
amounts are subject to periodic change. Coverage through SEGIP becomes secondary to
Medicare after Medicare eligibility has been reached. Members must enroll in Medicare Parts
A and B to receive the subsidized SEGIP premium available to Medicare eligible participants.
The Act requires the State to provide life insurance benefits for annuitants equal to their annual
salary as of the last day of employment until age 60, at which time, the benefit amount becomes
$5,000.

Funding policy and annual other postemployment benefit cost: OPEB offered through SEGIP
are financed through a combination of retiree premiums, State contributions and Federal
government subsidies from the Medicare Part D program. Contributions are deposited in the
Health Insurance Reserve Fund, which covers both active State employees and retirement
members. Annuitants may be required to contribute towards health and vision benefits with
the amount based on factors such as date of retirement, years of credited service with the State,
whether the annuitant is covered by Medicare, and whether the annuitant has chosen a managed
health care plan. Annuitants who retired prior to January 1, 1998, and who are vested in the
State Employee’s Retirement System do not contribute toward health and vision benefits. For
annuitants who retired on or after January 1, 1998, the annuitant’s contribution amount is
reduced five percent for each year of credited service with the State allowing those annuitants
with twenty or more years of credited service to not have to contribute towards health and
vision benefits. All annuitants are required to pay for dental benefits regardless of retirement
date. The Director of CMS shall, on an annual basis, determine the amount the State shall
contribute toward the basic program of group health benefits. State contributions are made
primarily from the State’s General Revenue Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis. No assets are
accumulated or dedicated to funding the retiree health insurance benefit and a separate trust
has not been established for the funding of OPEB.

For fiscal year 2023, the annual cost of the basic program of group health, dental, and vision
benefits before the State’s contribution was $12,636 (36,990 if Medicare eligible) if the
annuitant chose benefits provided by a health maintenance organization and $14,646 ($5,882
if Medicare eligible) if the annuitant chose other benefits. The State is not required to fund the
plan other than the pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide the current benefits to retirees.

Special funding situation of OPEB: The proportionate share of the State’s OPEB expense
relative to the System’s former employees or retirees was estimated to be ($141,833,827)
during the year ended June 30, 2023, The amount of the total proportionate share of the total
OPEB liability to be recognized by the System related to the special funding situation is $0.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement unless otherwise specified. The actuarial valuation for the SEGIP was based on
GARS. JRS. SERS, TRS, and SURS active. inactive, and retiree data as of June 30, 2021, for
eligible SEGIP employees, and SEGIP retirce data as of June 30, 2021.
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Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation Rate

Projected Salary Increases”
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate:

Medical & Rx (Pre-Medicare -
QCHP**)

Post-Medicare - MAPD***
Retirces' share of benefit-
related costs

June 30. 2021
June 30. 2022
Enury Age Normal
125%

2.30% - 12.75%

Trend rates start at §.00% tn 2024, decreasing by 0 23% per year to an ulumate
trend rate of 4.25% n vear 2039

Trend rates are 0.00% 1n years 2024 10 2028, 19.42% from 2029 to 2033, then
5.77% in 2034 decreasing ratably to an ulumate trend rate of 4.25% in 2039
Healtheare premium rates for members depend on the date of retirement and the
vears of service earned at retirement. Members who retred before January [,
1998, arc eligible for single coverage at no cost to the member Members who
retire after January 1, 1998, are eligible for single coverage provided they pay a
portion of the premium equal to 3 percent for each year of service under 2
vears. Eligible dependents receive coverage provided they pay 100 percent of
the required dependent premium. Premiums tor plan year 2022 and 2023 are
based on acwal premiums. Premiums after 2023 were projected based on the
same healthcare cost trend rates applied 1o per capita claim costs

Note the above actuarial asstmptions were used to calculate the OPEB hability as of the current vear measuremeni date
and are consistent with the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the OPER liability as of the preor year measurement

date except for the following.
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate:
Medical & Rx (Pre-Medicare
& Post-Medicare)

Medical & Rx (Post-Medicare)

Dental and Vision

1.8 % grading up 6.20% in the first year 1o 8.00%. then grading down 0.25%
per vear to an ultimate trend of 4.25% in year 2038. There 15 no addittonal trend
rate adjustment due to the repeal of the Excise Tax

-7.56% grading up 13 56% wn the first year to 8.00%, then grading down 0.25%
per year to an ultimate trend of 4 25% in year 2038

3.75% grading up 0 23% in the first vear to 4.00% through 2038.

*Dependent upon service and participation in the respective retirement sy stems Includes inflation rate listed.

**Quality Care Health Plan

»+*)\fedicare Advantage Prescription Drug
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Additionally, the demographic assumptions used in this OPEB valuation are identical to those used
in the June 30, 2021 valuations for GARS, JRS, SERS, TRS, and SURS as follows:

Retirement age experience
study”® Mortality""

GARS July 2018 - June 2021 Pub-2010 Above-Median Income General Healthy Retiree Mortality
tables, sex distinct, scaling factors of 99% for males and females and
generational mortality improvements using MP-2018 two-
dimensional mortality improvement scales

JRS July 2018 - June 2021 Pub-2010 Above-Median Income General Healthy Retiree Mortality
1able, sex distinct, scaling factors of 102% for males and 98% for
females and generational mortality improvements using MP-2018
two-dimensional mortality improvement scales

SERS July 2018 - June 2021 Pub-2010 General and Public Safety Healthy Retiree mortality table.
sex distinct, with rates projected to 2018 generational mortality
improvement factors were updated to projection scale MP-2018

TRS July 2017 - June 2020 RE-2010 with future mortality improvements on a fully generational
basis using projection table MP-2020

SURS July 2017 - June 2020 Rates based on Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality tables and the
most recent MP-2020 projection scale. Teachers table was used for
Academic members and General

~ The actuarial assumptions used in the respective actuarial valuations are based on the results of actuarial experience
studies for the periods defined.

A Mortality rates are based on mortality tables published by the Society of Actuaries’ Retirement Plans Experience
Committee.

Discount Rate: Retirees contribute a percentage of the premium rate based on service at
retirement. The State contributes additional amounts to cover claims and expenses in excess
of retiree contributions. Because plan benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis, the single
discount rate is based on a tax-exempt municipal bond rate index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date. A single discount rate of
1.92% at June 30, 2021, and 3.69% at June 30, 2022, was used to measure the total OPEB
liability.
(10) Related-Party Transactions

The University charged the System for administrative and other services totaling $22,290,113 in
fiscal year 2023. These charges represent a portion of the estimated administrative and other service
costs incurred by the University in support of the System. An additional $34,978,128 was paid by the
University on behalf of the System for salaries and other costs for the year ended June 30, 2023, in
exchange for System services and facilities provided, and are recognized as operating expenses
(salaries and general} and operating revenues.

The System provides funds to the UIC College of Medicine to support programmatic initiatives that
benefit the System’s strategic goals and to pay for salaries of physicians and staff in the College of
Medicine who serve as medical directors and physician leaders of the System under various
agreements. During fiscal year 2023, approximately $57.3 million was recognized in salaries and
wages and supplies and general expenses by the System under these agreements,

ATTACHMENT 34
36 (Continued)

/7



(1)

The System provides funds to the University’s College of Pharmacy under various arrangements to
pay for salaries of clinical pharmacists, faculty and residents and to support programs that benefit the
System’s clinical operations. During fiscal year 2023, approximately $17.8 million was recognized
in salaries and wages and supplies and general expenses under these arrangements.

The System contracts with the College of Pharmacy to provide certain pharmacy services related to
the Federal drug discount program under Section 340b of the Public Health Service Act, under which
the System is a covered entity and purchases drugs for dispensing to eligible outpatients. During
fiscal year 2023, the System paid approximately $17.6 million to the College of Pharmacy for these
services.

The College of Pharmacy also provides various community benefit programs to patients and
constituents of the System. During fiscal year 2023, the System paid approximately $8.1 million to
the College of Pharmacy to support these programs.

Most healthcare services rendered by physicians at the University are charged, billed and collected
through the MSP. For Hospital-based ambulatory care services, there is a charge for both professional
and technical components. Based on the underlying agreements between the MSP and the System,
the System remits certain net technical revenue to the MSP. Total MSP remittances from the System
for the year ended June 30, 2023 relating to the delivery of ambulatory care were approximately
$14.4 million.

During 2023, various departments within the College of Medicine agreed to reimburse the System
for a portion of the expenses related to the resident and fellowship training program. This
reimbursement, which totaled $3.5 million, has been reflected in the financial statements as a
reduction of the related expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies
{e) Commitments

At June 30, 2023, the System had commitments on various construction projects and contracts
for repairs and renovation of health services facilities of $21,355,108, commitments on
software projects of $33,579,201, and commitments on equipment of $4,058,067.

() Contingencies

The University (including the System) is involved in regulatory audits arising in the normal
course of business.

In 2023, the System received notices from Medicare and other payers requiring that it provide
documentation for certain claims as part of audit programs. The System has responded to these
requests. Review of claims through these Medicare and other payer audit programs may result
in a Hability to Medicare and other payers which could have a material impact on the System’s
net patient service revenue.

The University (including the System) is a defendant in a number of legal acttons primarily related to
medical malpractice. These legal actions have been considered in estimating the University’s accrued
self-insurance liability, which covers hospital and medical professional/general liability, estimated
general and contractual liability, and workers’ compensation liability. At June 30, 2023, the

University’s total accrued self-insurance liability was $281,930,993.
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The University’s accrued self-insurance liability includes $186,012,440 at June 30, 2023, for the most
probable and reasonably estimable ultimate cost of medical malpractice liabilities. Ultimate cost
consists of amounts estimated by the University’s risk management division and actuaries for asserted
claims, unasserted claims arising from reported incidents, expected litigation expenses and amounts
determined by actuaries using relevant industry data and System specific data to cover projected losses
for claims incurred but not yet reported. The System contributes to the University’s self-insurance
reserve through annual assessments (approximately $12.4 million in fiscal year 2023). Therefore, no
liability related to medical malpractice claims is included in the System’s financial statements, but the
entire self-insurance liability is reflected in the University’s financial statements.

The System utilizes classes of medical devices and x-ray machines that have legally imposed costs
associated with their eventual disposal. The System does not have sufficient information available to
reasonably estimate the timing and/or cost related to these future retirement obligations.

Subsequent Events

The variable rate HSFS Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 are synthetically hedged with a floating to fixed
interest rate swap agreement. As mentioned in Note 5(a), from the initiation of the swap agreement,
the swap counterparty pays to the University 68% of LIBOR, with the University paying a fixed interest
amount of 3.534% to the counterparty in monthly settlements. This LIBOR rate ceased official
publishing on June 30, 2023. Effective with the settlement on the swap agreement beginning August
5, 2023, and expected to continue to the swap agreement’s termination date on October 1, 2026,
reference rate fallback protocols as defined by the International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA}) are
to be relied upon. Under this fallback protocol, the floating rate payor’s obligation is determined by
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). The swap counterparty’s settlement will be calculated
as 68% of (SOFR + 11.448 bps), as defined by ISDA actions taken with respect to the sunset of
publishing the US Doilar LIBOR indices.

On August 1, 2023, the University executed an optional redemption of $300,000 principal of the HSFS
1997B bonds, as governed by the bond resolution. The optional redemption was selected from principal
with a maturity date of October 1, 2026.

In October 2023, the System issued HSFS Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2023 in the amount of
$68,325,000. The bonds, which have fixed interest rates of 5.00% and 5.50%, mature serially from
2027 through 2042. Proceeds from the Series 2023 bonds will be used to (i) refund all the HSFS
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, and (ii) pay costs of issuing the Series 2023 bonds and refunding the
Series 2013 bonds.
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PROJECTED OPERATING COSTS and
TOTAL EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON CAPITAL COSTS

TARGET Medical Clinics Building

Year 2 projected patient visits 23,324

Year 2 projected operating costs:
staffing costs S 1,826,792

medical supplies $ 3,765,666
S 5,592,458
per patient visit: $239.77
Year 2 projected capital costs:
dep/amort/interest: s 1,055,000
per patient visit: S 45.23
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